Agenda Item 6.

1 Governance and Audit Committee –
2 25 September 2019
Final Statement of Accounts 2018/19
Purpose of report
This report covers the presentation of the Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March
2019, following the audit and any subsequent amendments to the draft statement, for
approval.
Attachment(s)
Appendix 1: Statement of Accounts 2018/19 (to follow)

1.

Overview

1.1.

The annual Statement of Accounts is the summary financial representation of every
transaction that the council has been directly or indirectly involved with, over the
course of the 2018/19 financial year.

1.2.

The publication of the Statement of Accounts is an essential feature of public
accountability and stewardship, as it provides an annual report on how the council
has used the public funds for which it is responsible. This is required by the Accounts
and Audit Regulations 2015.

1.3.

The importance of the statement of accounts to the authority is extremely high and
although it is an historical document, the closing of the accounts is vital to the
financial planning process as it confirms the availability of reserves and balances for
future use.

1.4.

This report seeks approval of the Statement of Accounts for 31 March 2019.

2.

Audit of Accounts 2018/19

2.1.

The council produced its draft Statement of Accounts which were signed off by the
Chief Finance Officer on 31 May 2019 in compliance with the statutory requirements
of the Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015.

2.2.

The accounts were then presented to the Governance and Audit Committee on 24th
July 2019. As reported in item 8 of the Committee meeting on 24th July, EY were
unable to complete their external audit in line with the statutory requirements of the
Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015, whereby a final set of accounts should be
published, complete with an audit opinion on whether the accounts represent a true
and fair view, by 31st July.

2.3.

EY committed to deliver their audit opinion by 30th September 2019. At time of
writing this report there are a number of audit areas that remain outstanding that are
currently being worked on. The list of outstanding areas are covered in a separate
report to the Committee, at item 6.

2.4.

EY have also informed Northamptonshire Chief Finance Officers that due to delays in
KMPG signing off the Northamptonshire County Council (NCC) Statement of
Accounts for 2017/18, EY cannot start their work on the Northamptonshire Pension
Fund (NPF) accounts for 2018/19 (due to the fact NPF accounts, although separate,
form part of the NCC accounts as NCC is the Pension Fund administering body).
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2.5.

Therefore, EY cannot sign ENC’s audit opinion until a level of assurance work is
completed on the NPF accounts, given that a material part of the council’s accounts
relate to pension fund entries. EY will be providing an update on this issue at the
meeting.

3.

Statement of Accounts 2018/19

3.1.

This report presents the Statement of Accounts at Appendix 1, at the time of writing.

3.2.

The main changes to the Statement of Accounts for 2018/19 between draft and final
are also highlighted in a separate report to the Committee, at item 6.

3.3.

Delegation is sought to allow the Chief Finance Officer and the Chair of the
Governance and Audit Committee to sign off the final Statement of Accounts once
the audit work is completed. If any further changes are required as a result of the
outstanding work, these will be reported back to the committee in due course.

4.

Equality and Diversity Implications

4.1.

There are no equality and diversity implications arising from this report.

5.

Privacy Impact Implications

5.1.

There are no privacy impact implications arising from the recommendations in this
report.

6.

Legal Implications

6.1.

There are no legal implications arising from this report. It is worth noting that the
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 set out the statutory obligation for the council
to produce its statement of accounts.

7.

Risk Management

7.1.

There are no significant risks to the council arising from this report.

8.

Resource and Financial Implications

8.1.

There are no additional financial implications arising from this report.

9.

Constitutional Implications

9.1.

There are no constitutional implications arising from this report.

10.

Implications for Our Customers

10.1. There are no implications for our customers arising directly from this report.
11.

Corporate Outcomes

11.1. This report links to the following Corporate Outcomes:

Effective Management
Ensuring robust risk management arrangements are in place to manage and
minimise risks the council is exposed to

Good Value for Money
The Annual Governance report sets out an unqualified value for money opinion
demonstrating the council’s achievement in working towards this objective
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12.

Recommendation

12.1. The Committee is recommended to:


Approve the Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2019



Delegate authority to the Chief Finance Officer, following consultation with the
Chairman of the Governance and Audit Committee, to make any amendments
necessary to the Statement of Accounts 2018/19 prior to publication, and to sign
the accounts



Delegate authority to the Chief Finance Officer and the Chairman of the
Governance and Audit Committee to sign the 2018/19 Letter of Representation

(Reason – to comply with the requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations)
Power:

Legal

Local Government Act 2003
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015

Other considerations:

Background Papers:
Statement of Accounts and working papers
Person Originating Report: Glenn Hammons, Chief Finance Officer
 01832 742267  ghammons@east-northamptonshire.gov.uk
Date: 16/09/2019

CFO

MO
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17/09/19

CX
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Message from the Chief Finance Officer

The accounts have been prepared to a high standard and delivered in line with the Council's
timetable. Reviewing and streamlining the close down process, together with the implementation
of an upgrade to the Council's financial system has enabled the financial statements to be signed
and published by 31st May .
In addition, as an aid to transparency, the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require all Local
Authorities to have a 30 day public inspection period which includes the first 10 working days in
June. As per legislation the audited financial statements are submitted to the appropriate body
(Governance and Audit Committee) for approval, the accounts will be presented to this
committed by 31st July , but will not be approved until 30th September due to resourcing
constraints within the External Auditors.
The financial statements demonstrate that the financial standing of the Council continues to be
robust, against a continuously changing financial environment. Looking ahead there is potential
for continued financial uncertainty for local government, the finance team will have a key role in
supporting the Council through these challenging times in setting future budgets.
Achieving the year end close down within the accelerated targets set, is the result of hard work
and dedication of the staff in Financial Services.
The Statement of Accounts have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). It aims to provide information
so that members of the public, including electors and residents of East Northamptonshire,
Councillors, partners, stakeholders and other interested parties can:
• Understand the overarching financial position of the Council and outturn for 2018/19;
• Have confidence that the public money with which the Council has been entrusted has been
used and accounted for in the appropriate manner; and
• Be assured that the financial position of the Council is sound and secure.
The format and style of the accounts complies with CIPFA standards and is similar to previous
years.
The narrative report gives readers a brief overview of the most significant matters reported in the
accounts and an explanation in overall terms of the Council's financial position. It is based on the
key principles identified in the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 2018/19. The
Council’s financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, that is on the assumption
that the functions of the Council will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
Any transfer of functions under combinations of public sector bodies, such as local government
reorganisation, do not negate the presumption of going concern.
The Narrative report provides information about East Northamptonshire, including the key issues
affecting the Council and its accounts. It also provides a summary of the financial position at 31
March 2019 and is structured as below:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

An introduction to East Northamptonshire
Key Facts about East Northamptonshire
Key information about East Northamptonshire Council
The 2018/19 Revenue Budget Process
Capital Strategy and Capital Programme 2018/19 to 2026/27
Financial Performance of the Council 2018/19
Non-Financial Performance of the Council 2018/19
Corporate Risks
Medium Term Financial Position
Receipt of Further Information
Acknowledgements

This is followed by an explanation of the Financial Statements, including information on
significant transactions during 2018/19.
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An Introduction to East Northamptonshire

Positioned in the heart of England with its historic market towns and picturesque villages, East
Northamptonshire has a mix of rural and urban areas which make it a great place to live, work
and visit. Despite the economic constraints of recent years, the district continues to grow with
continued above average demand for house building and on-going interest from a diverse
business base. However, this continued growth should not mask the challenge that the council
faces in achieving its vision to sustain a thriving district.
East Northamptonshire Council is one of seven Districts and Borough Councils in the County of
Northamptonshire and is easily accessible by road from other parts of England and Europe.

Key Facts about East Northamptonshire

The Council recognises that in order to retain and improve the quality of life of those who live
and work in this area, it is important that the demand for housing growth is accompanied by the
provision of appropriate physical and social infrastructure and the creation of new employment.
Otherwise, there is a risk that the local economy will not develop in a manner that fully realises
the potential of both the area and local residents.
Population
Office for National Statistics Mid-Year Estimates for 2017 reported that East Northamptonshire's
estimated population was 93,135 with the age profile as presented below.

0-15
16-64
65+

Composition of East Northamptonshire
Population
19%
61%
21%

20%

19%

0-15
16-64
65+

61%

East Northamptonshire has an elderly age profile, with more people aged 65+ years compared
to aged 0 to 15 years. This trend is above the national average as demonstrated below.
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Key Facts about East Northamptonshire (cont)

Equality
East Northamptonshire Council recognises that equality and diversity is central to how our
organisation operates and is committed to advancing the equality of opportunity, to eliminate
discrimination and promote good relations in both our community and our workforce. We will
provide a working environment where employees feel they are treated with dignity and fairness,
and whereby skills and experience are valued. We will raise awareness in the community and
consult with our local partners to promote an inclusive society where our residents feel safe and
supported by their Council.
Economy
Economic data tells us:
• Around 73 % of housing in the district is resident-owned (outright or with a mortgage or loan)
which is higher than the average for Northamptonshire;
• Nearly one in ten of the overall population lives in income deprivation (rising to 12.8% of
children and nearly 12.1% of older people);
• Almost 83% of people throughout East Northamptonshire class themselves as in good or very
good health. However, obesity levels are higher than the England average level;
• Around 58% of the population are of working age (20-65);
• Over the last 3 years Business Rates has seen growth of 35% this due to developments such
as:
• Large distribution centres - Primark
• Large shopping areas - Rusheden Lakes
Key information about East Northamptonshire Council

East Northamptonshire Council is a multifunctional and complex organisation. Its policies are
directed by the Political Leadership and implemented by the Corporate Management Team and
Officers of the Council. The following section describes the political and management structures
of the Council, the political ethos driving the policy agenda and the means by which these are
implemented and managed.
Political Structure in the 2018/19 Municipal Year
East Northamptonshire has 22 wards and the council consists of 40 Councillors and the political
make-up of the Council is as follows:

Conservative Party
Independent Group
Labour Party

36
2
2

The overall administration of the Council is a Conservative Party majority.
Councillor Steven North is the Leader and Councillor David Jenny is the Deputy Leader of the
Council.
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Key information about East Northamptonshire Council (continued)

Management Structure
Chief Executive

Executive Director

Executive Director

Head of Economic
and Commercial
Development

Head of Resources

Head of Planning
Services

Head of
Environmental
Service

Head of Customer
and Community
Services

The Corporate Management Team is responsible for the delivery of Council services, directing
improvements and future plans for East Northamptonshire. It provides managerial leadership
and supports Councillors in:
•
•
•
•

Developing strategies;
Identifying and planning resources;
Delivering plans;
Reviewing the Authority’s effectiveness with the overall objective of providing excellent
services to the public.

Council Employees
East Northamptonshire employs 206 staff. The ratio of employees by gender is as follows:

Workforce Gender Proportions
28.60%

Male
Female

Workforce Gender Proportions
71.40%
28.60%
71.40%

Male
Female

The Council’s Corporate Plan
One of the key strategic documents that frame the actions of the Council is the Council’s
Corporate Plan. This is a working document that exists to help Councillors, staff and partners
work together to deliver the vision for East Northamptonshire. Its primary purpose is to meet
the needs and aspirations of the people of East Northamptonshire.
Our Ambition is…
Working with our Communities to sustain a thriving District.
The Corporate Plan includes a small number of key priorities:
Sustainable development – there is continuing demand for housing in this area. We recognise
the need for growth and the benefits it can bring, particularly in helping to revitalise our town
centres, but it must be sustainable. We will aim to accommodate sensible levels of growth while
preserving the character of our historic towns and villages.

East Northamptonshire Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19
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Key information about East Northamptonshire Council (continued)

Regeneration and economic development – allied to growth must be improvements to the
quality of our town centres. We will work with the private sector to bring investment into the
area and to reverse the decline of some of our towns. We will continue to consult local
communities about the changes that they want to see and work with them to achieve their
aspirations for their local area.
Financial stability – we will continue to control our costs, to find ways of generating income and
to provide value-for-money services by maintaining our drive for efficiency and building
effective partnerships.
Customer focused services – despite the economic downturn, the District is still relatively
affluent. Many of our residents and businesses routinely use the internet and we will continue
to upgrade our website to provide better quality information and to enable far more transactions
to be carried out online. We will also work even more closely with our partners, particularly the
County Council, to meet the needs of the most vulnerable members of our community.

The 2018/19 Revenue Budget Process

The 2018/19 revenue budget process was undertaken using a tried and tested method of
review and challenge by the Corporate Management Team and Councillors to identify and
agree budget savings and/or pressures, which were published in February 2018.
In February 2018 these proposals were taken to Finance Sub Committee which identified a
decrease in net expenditure of £1.031m compared to 2017/18 total net expenditure for the
General Fund.
On the 26th February 2019 Council agreed the budget proposals for the General Fund with a
net expenditure budget of £10.2m. Council also approved the Fees and Charges 2018/19,
Treasury Management Strategy 2018/19 and the Capital Programme for 2018/2028.
The Revenue budget is funded as follows:

36%

Revenue
Su of
413,931
Sources
Funding
New Home #######
3% #######
Business Ra
Council tax #######
20%

Revenue Support Grant
New Homes Bonus
Business Rates Retention

41%

Council tax

Council Tax
Council Tax Policy was to increase Council Tax by £5, as East Northamptonshire are within the
lowest 10% Band D Council Tax within England. Northamptonshire County Council (NCC) and
Police and Crime Commissioner for Northamptonshire (PCCN) increased their precepts by
5.98% (including 2% Adult Social Care contribution) and £12 respectively for 2018/19.
The comparison of Council Tax levels from 2017/18 to 2018/19 is shown below:
Band D Council Tax by Tax
East Northamptonshire
NCC
PCCN

2017/18
2018/19
(£)
(£)
133.65
138.65
1,166.59 1,236.35
209.04
221.04
1,509.28

1,596.04
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Capital Strategy and Capital Programme 2018/19 to 2027/28

The Capital programme was approved at Full Council on the 26th Februrary 2018 and provided
the framework within which the Council's capital investment plans were to be delivered.
The Council is embarking on an ambitious ten year capital programme of £21.408m. The major
schemes included are:
• Disabled Facilities Grants £5m - provision of disabled adaptations in private residents
property
• IT Support £2.412m - to maintain the current services levels throughout the Council.
• Property Maintenance £2.208m - to maintain Property throughout the Council.
• Enterprise Centre £7.7m - Economic Development
• Refuse Vehicles £3m - to collect the district refuse

10 Year Capital Investment Programme
8,000

10 Year Capital Programme

£k

7,000

6,0002018/19

6,156

5,0002019/20

6,713

2020/21

1,351

2021/22

1,499

2022/23

1,017

1,0002024/25

1,037

4,000
3,000

2,0002023/24
-

2018/19

914

2019/20

2025/26

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

2025/26

930

Financial Performance of the Council 2018/19

Revenue Outturn Position
The Council revenue outturn position is shown in the table below. The original budget set at Full
Council in Febraury 2018 was £10.210m, with an additional (£90k) interest receivable and £72k
agreed as budget carried forward from 2017/18, revising the budget to £10.192m. Through robust
monitoring the Council achieved an under spend against revenue budgets on its General
Fund. The budgeted outturn for the Council was a contribution to general reserves of £396k to
ensure the council has sufficient resources in the future to cover a number of risks on the horizon
(e.g. Government austerity measures, welfare reform, the economy, retention of business rates,
Fair Funding Review and Spending Review).

Corporate & Democrati
Customer &
Community Services
Economic &
Commercial
Environmental Services
ICT
Resources & Org Dev
Planning Services
TOTAL

Budget
2018/19
£000
270

Actual
2018/19
£000
172

1,635

1,589

306
3,400
729
2,260
1,593

308
3,129
884
2,371
1,345

10,192

9,797

Variance
P11

Change

£000
(97)

(54)

(44)

(47)

35

(81)

(56)
(23)
(82)
(87)
(267)

(216)
178
193
(161)
(131)

Variance

2
(271)
155
111
(248)
(396)

Further detail is available in the May 2019 Budget Monitoring Report to Committee at:
https://www.east-northamptonshire.gov.uk/meetings/meeting/958/finance_and_performance_sub_committee
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Financial Performance of the Council 2018/19 (continued)

Capital
The Council agreed a budget in Febuary 2018 of £645k. Together with £2.260m carried forward
The council
has spent
£7mprogramme,
on capital works
(£5.5mbudget
below was
budget)
such as During
improvement
to
from
the 2017/18
capital
the revised
£2.905m.
the year
council
houses,
building
of
new
council
houses
and
community
facilities
which
will
help
it
additional projects were undertaken of £144k, together with transfers from the development pool
move
forward
on its the
Corporate
Plan.
of £3.220m,
making
capital investment
programme for 2018/19 £6.269m. The Council has
spent £4.799m on capital works, £1.470m below budget, of which £1.428m will be carried
forward into the capital programme of 2019/20.

Capital investment
Environmental
Projects
39%
Enterprise Centre
38%

Leisure and
Tourism
1%

Capital Financing
Capital Receipts
Capital Grants
Contribution from Gen

Corporate Systems
9%

Housing Projects
11%

Capital Funding
581
346
284

Maintenance
projects
2%

Capital Grants
13%

Capital Receipts
87%
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Financial Performance of the Council 2018/19
Balance Sheet

Councilhas
hascontinued
continued
to improve
its balance
sheet
in with
line meeting
with meeting
its objective
to
The Council
to improve
its balances
sheet
in line
its objective
to ensure
ensure the Council has sufficient useable reserves to meet its key risks.

At 31
March 2018
£000
37,750
26,157
(31,540)

At 31
March 2019
£000
46,041
26,995
(34,576)

Net Assets

32,367

38,460

Represented by: Usable Reserves

17,531

20,609

Represented by: Unusable Reserves

14,836

17,852

Total Reserves

32,367

39,269

Non-Current Assets
Net Current Assets
Net Liabilities

Net Assets

Net assets have increased by £6.894m due to the increase in value of the Property owned by the
Council and an increase in the Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of 2018/19
Provisions

Short term provisions have decreased from £1.383m to £1.219m, this is solely down to Business
rate appeals. The decrease in provision has been made upon the best estimate of the actual
liability at the year-end in known appeals based on information provided by the Valuation Office
Treasury

Cash and cash equivalents have increased from £10.805m to £15.271m. This is predominantly
due to an increase in short term deposits in the year. Total short term investments have
decreased by £4m to £9m for the current financial year.
Pension Liability

The in year valuation in relation to the Local Government Defined Benefit Pension has increased
the deficit in this financial year by £3.846m to £26.901m in 2018/19. Further details of the
Defined Benefit Pension Plan are shown within note 34.
Non-Financial Performance of the Council 2018/19
Achievements

Despite the financial constraints under which we have been operating, we have remained
ambitious and have worked with the private sector to deliver significant growth in the District. It
has been very challenging to achieve that growth while preserving the character of our towns and
villages and ensuring that new development brings with it the associated infrastructure and
services needed to support that development.
Below are some of the positive outcomes that have happened within the District throughout
2018/19:
• Achieved sustainable finances and a balanced budget set for 2019/20
• Rushden Lakes development has grown and is thriving
• Land purchased for the Enterprise Centre at Warth Park, Raunds
• Delivered a new waste contract, started in August 2018
Along with the other Northamptonshire councils, secured a 75% Business Rates Pilot for the
area, retaining more funding locally.

East Northamptonshire Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19
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Corporate Risks

A risk management strategy is in place to identify and evaluate risks. There is a clear process in
place referred to as the risk management cycle with specific roles and responsibilities identified.
The impact and likelihood of risks are assessed using a matrix scoring approach. Through
embedding risk management across the organisation, there is a better understanding of the
threats and opportunities which helps us to support better decision making.
Below are the council’s corporate risks as identified in the risk register:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Failure to achieve optimum level of growth across the district
Loss due to major court cases
Lack of engagement with and provision of services by the Voluntary and Third Sector
Lack of staff resources in terms of numbers
Lack of staff resources in terms of knowledge, skills and/or behaviours
Failure to comply with legislation relevant to Local Government
Risk of unitary preparation diverting resources from delivery of corporate/efficiency plans
Failure to achieve Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard compliance
Failure to follow ENC’s project Framework
Risk of cyber attach
Risk of inappropriate use of IT by staff
Risk of inappropriate use of IT by Councillors
Failure to protect personal data
Councillors breaching Code of Conduct, Constitution and/or legislation
Failure to meet corporate health and safety requirements including fire risk
Failure to respond effectively to major incidents
Failure to meet business continuity requirements
Failure to plan for and accommodate the impact of Brexit
Failure of core IT infrastructure leading to inability to provide services
Deterioration of staff health and wellbeing
Failure of transformation programme to enable transition into new unitary organisation

Since 2010 East Northamptonshire Council has faced significant financial challenges due to the
reductions in funding from central government along with continued pressures in delivering
services and greater volatility in future funding streams.
The only thing that is certain is that there will continue to be significant change within Local
Government Finance. Despite this uncertainty, the key underlying strategic principles remain
unchanged – maximising service delivery whilst maintaining relatively low Council Tax and
maximising funding from external partners in order to secure value for money for the residents of
the Borough.
In November 2015 the Autumn Statement set out the strategic direction for public expenditure
until 2020. This outlined a number of significant changes to the local government funding regime
which will have an impact on the Council's finances over time and which were incorporated into
the Council's current Medium Term Financial Strategy. These included:
• By the end of the Parliament local government will retain 75% of business rates revenues to
fund local services, in addition the Uniform Business Rate will be abolished and any local area
will be able to cut business rates at their discretion. This is likely to be implemented in 2020;
• Greater flexibility for local authorities to use capital receipts to fund the revenue costs of
business transformation projects;
• Reduction in funding period of New Homes Bonus from a 6 year to 4 year rolling period,
effective from 2017/18.
Fair Funding Review
A Consultation has been undertaken by the Ministry of Housing Communities and Local
Government (MHCLG) in relation to fair funding and will set new baseline funding allocations for
local authorities by delivering an up-to-date assessment of their relative needs and resources,
using the best available evidence. Collective and individual responses were made in relation to
this consultation for Northamptonshire and East Northamptonshire, the impact of this assessment
is likely to affect the 2020/21 financial settlement.

East Northamptonshire Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19
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Medium Term Financial Position

Medium Term Financial Strategy for 2018/19 to 2021/22
The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) set in February 2018 covered the 4 year period of
2018/19 to 2021/22. This set out a detailed projection for the General Fund and the Capital
Programme. At this point in time, due to Government funding reductions and future income risks,
meant that whilst the General Fund was in a reasonably healthy position for the current year,
efficiency savings were predicted over the following three years. However, due to significant
business rates growth in the District, these forecasts were updated in the MTFS set in March
2019, covering the period 2019/20 to 2023/24 which project a positive position across the
medium term. A level of prudency has been built in, and the significant risk surrounding the level
of government funding in general, including the review of the Business Rates Retention Scheme,
must be recognised.
Local Government Reorganisation
Northamptonshire County Council (NCC) have been the subject of a Best Value report by a
Government appointed Inspector, Max Caller.
The Inspector’s report issued in March 2018 found that NCC has failed to comply with its duty
under the Local Government Act 1999 (as amended) to provide best value in delivery of its
services. The report proposes that East Northamptonshire forms part of one unitary with Corby,
Wellingborough and Kettering, the “North”. Northampton, Daventry and South Northants form the
other, the “West”. The report advises that the new arrangement should be established following
elections in May 2020.
On 14th May 2019 the Secretary of State announced that two new untiaries will be established in
Northamptonshire by 1st April 2021. Government has reviewed all of the evidence and
representations received, and has decided that replacing the eight councils with two unitary
authorities is how we will move forward.
Parliamentary Orders will follow later this year and there will be elections to the Shadow
Authorities in May 2020. Shadow Executives for the two unitaries will be selected from those
elected and will determine the structure, budget and service delivery models for the new councils.
Brexit
Following the referendum result on 23 June 2016 which meant that the United Kingdom was to
leave the European Union (EU), the Prime Minister triggered Article 50 on 29 March 2017 which
formally began this process. On 20 March 2019, the Prime Minister wrote to the European
Council President asking to extend Article 50 until 30 June 2019. Following a meeting of the
European Council on 10 April 2019, the UK and the EU 27 countries agreed to extend Article 50
until 31st October 2019.
The implications of leaving the EU are not fully known but there could be a potential impact for
the District due to reductions in EU funding, a change in interest rates, an increase in expenditure
and an increase in the cost of basic goods which could impact on residents.
As there is still a degree of doubt, the risk associated with leaving the EU is not measurable. The
impact will be closely monitored and any adverse effect considered and reported through the
appropriate channels.

Receipt of Further information

The council produces a number of reports and strategies which say how we intend to tackle local
issues or provide local services. These are published on the council’s website, www.eastnorthamptonshire.gov.uk and should be read in conjunction with the council's accounts.
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Explanation of Financial Statements

The Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts identifies the officer who is
responsible for the proper administration of the council’s financial affairs.
The Accounting Statements:
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement - This statement shows the accounting cost
in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices,
rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. Authorities raise taxation to cover expenditure
in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation
position is shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
Movement in Reserves Statement - This statement shows the movement in the year on the
different reserves held by the authority, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be
applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and ‘other reserves’. The Surplus or (Deficit)
on the Provision of Services line shows the true economic cost of providing the authority’s
services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. These are different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the General
Fund Balance for council tax setting. The Net Increase/Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked
Reserves line shows the statutory General Fund Balance before any discretionary transfers to or
from earmarked reserves undertaken by the council.
Balance Sheet – The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets
and liabilities recognised by the authority. The net assets of the authority (assets less liabilities)
are matched by the reserves held by the authority. Reserves are reported in two categories. The
first category of reserves is usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the authority may use to
provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory
limitations on their use (for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only be used to fund
capital expenditure or repay debt). The second category of reserves is those that the authority is
not able to use to provide services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold
unrealised gains and losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only
become available to provide services if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing
differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line ‘Adjustments between accounting
basis and funding basis under regulations’.
Cash Flow Statement – The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash
equivalents of the authority during the reporting period. The statement shows how the authority
generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing
and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key
indicator of the extent to which the operations of the authority are funded by way of taxation and
grant income or from the recipients of services provided by the authority. Investing activities
represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to
contribute to the authority’s future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are
useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the
authority.

Collection Fund – this statement shows the transactions of the billing authority in relation to nondomestic rates and council tax, together with illustrating the way these have been distributed to
preceptors and the General Fund.
Annual Governance Statement – this statement identifies the systems that the council has in
place to ensure that its business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards;
and that public money is safeguarded.
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Statement of Responsibilities for the
Statement of Accounts
1

2018/19

The Authority's Responsibility

The authority is required to:
 Make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that
one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this
authority, that officer is the Chief Finance Officer.
 Manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient, and effective use of resources and
safeguard its assets.
 Approve the statement of accounts.
2

The Chief Finance Officer’s Responsibilities

The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for the preparation of the authority’s statement of
accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (The Code).
In preparing this statement of accounts the Chief Finance Officer has:
 Selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently.
 Made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent.
 Complied with the local authority Code.
The Chief Finance Officer has also:
 Kept proper accounting records which were up to date.
 Taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
 Ensured that an effective system of internal financial control is maintained and operated.
3

Certificate

I hereby certify that the statement of accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial
position of East Northamptonshire Council as at 31 March 2019 and its income and expenditure
for the year ended 31 March 2019.
The Statement of Accounts were authorised on 30th May 2019

Glenn Hammons
Executive Director: Resources and Commercial
Email:ghammons@east-northamptonshire.gov.uk

East Northamptonshire Council
Cedar Drive
Thrapston
Northamptonshire
NN14 4LZ
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Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

2018/19

This account summarises the resources that have been generated and consumed in providing
services and managing the council during the last year. It includes all day-to-day expenses and
related income on an accruals basis, as well as transactions measuring the value of non
current assets actually consumed and the real projected value of retirement benefits earned by
employees in the year.

£000
£000
799
0
21,622 (19,081)
6,266 (2,592)
578
(305)
1,496
(245)
3,930

(1,662)

880

(363)

35,572 (24,248)
2,988

(330)

610

(102)

5,781 (22,927)
44,951 (47,607)

£000
799
2,541
3,674
273
1,251
2,268

Customer & Community Services
Environmental Services
ICT
Resources & Org Dev
Planning Services

517 Economic & Commercial
Development
11,324 Cost of Services
Other operating income &
10
2,658
expenditure
Financing and investment income
11
508
and expenditure
Taxation and non-specific grant
12
(17,146)
income and expenditure
(Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of
(2,656)
Services
(Surplus)/deficit arising on
(2,572)
revaluation of non current assets
Remeasurement of net defined
(1,088)
benefit/liability
Other Comprehensive Income and
(3,660)
Expenditure
Total Comprehensive Income and
(6,316)
Expenditure

£000
£000
0
0
20,301 (17,770)
7,735 (3,427)
707
(664)
2,723
(53)
4,358 (2,209)
481

Net
Expenditure

Gross
Income

Note
Corporate and Democratic Core

Gross
Expenditure

2018/19
Net
Expenditure

Gross
Income

Gross
Expenditure

2017/18
Restated

£000
0
2,531
4,308
43
2,670
2,149

(427)

54

36,305 (24,551)

11,754

3,413

(640)

2,773

629

(198)

431

6,103 (25,403) (19,300)
46,450 (50,792)
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Movement in Reserves Statement

2018/19

This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the council,
analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local
taxation) and other reserves. The surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services line shows the
true economic cost of providing the council’s services, more details of which are shown in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. These are different from the statutory
amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balance and for council tax setting. The net
increase/decrease before transfers to Earmarked Reserves line shows the statutory General
Fund Balance before any discretionary transfers to or from Earmarked Reserves undertaken by
the council.

General
Fund
Balance
£000

Earmarked
Reserve
£000

Capital
Receipts
Reserve
£000

1,500

11,548

4,151

332

17,531

14,836

32,367

4,342

0

0

0

4,342

0

4,342

0

0

0

0

0

1,753

1,753

Total
Comprehensive
Income and
Expenditure

4,342

0

0

0

4,342

1,753

6,095

Adjustments between
accounting basis &
funding basis under
regulations (note 8)

2,360

0

(3,587)

(36)

(1,263)

1,263

0

Net increase /
decrease before
transfers to
Reserves

6,702

0

(3,587)

(36)

3,079

3,016

6,095

(6,702)

6,702

0

0

0

0

0

0

6,702

(3,587)

(36)

3,079

3,016

6,095

1,500

18,250

564

296

20,609

17,852

38,461

Movement in
Reserves During
2018/19
Balance at 1 April
2018
Movement in
Reserve 18/19
Surplus or (deficit) on
provision of services
Other Comprehensive
Income and
Expenditure

Transfers to / from
Reserves (note 9)
Increase / decrease
in year
Balance at 31 March
2019

Total

Total

Usable Unusable Authority
Grants
Unapplied Reserves Reserves Reserves
£000
£000
£000
£000
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Movement in Reserves Statement

2018/19

General
Fund
Balance
£000

Earmarked
Reserve
£000

Capital
Receipts
Reserve
£000

1,500

12,564

4,299

297

18,660

7,399

26,059

2,648

0

0

0

2,648

0

2,648

0

0

0

0

3,660

3,660

2,648

0

0

0

2,648

3,660

6,308

Adjustments between
accounting basis &
funding basis under
regulations (note 8)

(3,664)

0

(148)

35

(3,777)

3,777

0

Net increase /
decrease before
transfers to
Reserves

(1,016)

0

(148)

35

(1,129)

7,437

6,308

1,016

(1,016)

0

0

0

0

0

0

(1,016)

(148)

35

(1,129)

7,437

6,308

1,500

11,548

4,151

332

17,531

14,836

32,367

Movement in
Reserves During
2017/18 - Restated
Balance at 1 April
2017
Movement in
Reserve 17/18
Surplus or (deficit) on
provision of services
Other Comprehensive
Income and
Expenditure
Total
Comprehensive
Income and
Expenditure

Transfers to / from
Reserves (note 9)
Increase / decrease
in year
Balance at 31 March
2018

Total

Total

Usable Unusable Authority
Grants
Unapplied Reserves Reserves Reserves
£000
£000
£000
£000
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Balance Sheet

2018/19

Restated
31st March
2018
£000
32,817 Property, Plant & Equipment
3,318 Investment Property
743 Intangible Assets
872 Long Term Debtors
37,750 Long Term Assets
13,000
2,342
10,805
10
26,157

Short Term Investments
Short Term Debtors
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Assets Held for Sale
Current Assets

(6,215) Short Term Creditors
(1,383) Short Term Provisions
(7,598) Current Liabilities
(23,055) Other Long Term Liabilities
(887) Capital Grants Receipts in Advance
(23,942) Long Term Liabilities

Note

The Balance Sheet summarises the financial position of East Northamptonshire Council. It
shows the value of the council’s assets and liabilities as at 31st March 2019.

31st March
2019
£000

13

41,228

16
15
18

3,291
762
759
46,041

17
18
19

9,000
2,724
15,271
0
26,995

20
21

(4,786)
(1,219)
(6,005)

34
30

(27,710)
(861)
(28,571)

32,367 Net Assets
17,531 Usable Reserves
14,836 Unusable Reserves

38,461
22
23

32,367 Total Reserves
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Cash Flow Statement

2018/19

This consolidated statement summarises the inflows and outflows of revenue and capital cash
arising from transactions with third parties.

Note

Restated
2017/18
£000

2018/19
£000

24

(4,342)

24

(6,346)

Adjustments for items included in the net surplus or deficit
24
439 for the provision of services that are investing and
financing activities

927

Cash flow from Operating Activities
(2,648) Net (surplus) or deficit on the provision of services
(3,450)

Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the provision of
services for non-cash movements

(9,761)

(5,659) Net cash flows from Operating Activities
5,388 Investing Activities

25

(29)

(1,626) Financing Activities

26

5,323

Net (increase) or decrease in Cash and Cash
Equivalents

(4,467)

(8,908) Cash and Cash Equivalent at beginning of year
(10,805) Cash and Cash Equivalent at end of year

(10,805)
(15,272)

(1,897)
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Statement of Accounting Policies

2018/19

General Principles
The Statement of Accounts summarises the council’s transactions for the 2018/19 financial year
and its position at the year-end of 31 March 2019. It has been prepared in accordance with the
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19 (The Code). It
also complies with guidance notes issued by CIPFA on the application of Accounting Standards
(Standard Statements of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting Standards to Local
Authority Accounts).
This means that the relevant accounting policies adopted have been reviewed to ensure that
the Statement of Accounts can be relied upon to give a true and fair view of the council’s
financial performance and position. It also ensures that all legislative requirements have been
correctly applied and that finally, the accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis.
That is, the council will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
The accounting convention adopted is historical cost, modified by the revaluation of certain
categories of tangible non current assets.
These consolidated Accounts are presented in Sterling (£) as this is the most representative
currency of the council’s operations, and rounded to the nearest thousand.
The Accounts have been prepared in accordance with The Code. This requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. These estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are considered to
be reasonable under the circumstances. They form the basis of judgements about the carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily available from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a
continuing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised and in any future periods affected. Critical judgements and areas where the
use of estimates is significant are discussed in note 2 of the Notes to the Accounts.
a)

Accruals of Income and Expenditure

Expenditure and income are accounted for in the year that they take place, not simply when
cash payments are made or received. However if any amount (income or expenditure) comes to
light after a reasonable cut off period and is below £15k it will not be accrued for within the
financial year, as it will not have a material effect on the position of the income and expenditure
reported within these statements. In particular:
• Fees, charges and rents due from customers are accounted for as income at the date the
council provides the relevant goods or services.
• Supplies of goods are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a
gap between the date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as
inventories on the Balance Sheet.
• Interest payable on borrowings and receivable on investments is accounted for on the basis
of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows
fixed or determined by the contract.
• Where income and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or
paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where it
is doubtful that debts will be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge
made to revenue for the income that might not be collected.
An exception is made in respect of expenditure on electricity, gas and telephones where
expenditure on the latest four quarterly accounts has been taken as a proxy for actual
expenditure in the year.
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Statement of Accounting Policies
b)

2018/19

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash comprises cash in hand and on demand deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
c)

Contingent Assets and Liabilities

A contingent liability shall be disclosed where a liability exists but a reliable estimate cannot be
made. Contingent liabilities are assessed continually to determine whether an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits or service potential has become probable. A provision
is recognised in the financial statements of the period in which the change in probability occurs.
A contingent asset shall be disclosed in the note of the accounts where an inflow of economic
benefits or service potential is probable. Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure
that developments are appropriately reflected in the financial statements. If it has become
virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits or service potential will arise and the asset’s
value can be measured reliably, the debtor (or cash where consideration has been received)
and the related revenue are recognised in the financial statements of the period in which the
change occurs.
d)

Employee Benefits

Post Employment Benefits
Local Government Pension Scheme
Employees of the council may be members of the Local Government Pension Scheme which is
accounted for as a defined benefits scheme:
• Liabilities of the scheme attributable to the council are included in the Balance Sheet on an
actuarial basis using the projected unit method – i.e. an assessment of the future payments
that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on
assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc., and projections of projected
earnings for current employees.
• Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices using a discount rate 2.4%.
• The assets of the scheme attributable to the council are included at their fair value:
• quoted securities – current bid price.
• unquoted securities – professional estimate.
• unitised securities – current bid price.
• property – market value.
• The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components:
• Service cost comprising:
• Current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned
this year. It is recorded in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to
the revenue accounts of services for which the employees worked.
• Past service cost – the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions
whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years. It is debited to the
Net Cost of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account as
part of Non Distributed Costs.
• Net interest on the net defined benefit liability – the expected increase in the present
value of liabilities during the year as they move one year closer to being paid. It is
debited to Net Operating Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Account.
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Statement of Accounting Policies

2018/19

• Remeasurement comprising:
• expected return on assets – the annual investment return on the fund assets
attributable to the council, based on an average of the expected long-term return. It
is credited to Net Operating Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Account.
• actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise because
events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or
because the actuaries have updated their assumptions. It is debited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
• contributions paid to the pension fund – cash paid as employer’s contributions to the
pension fund.
The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is charged with the cost of the benefits
that have accrued during the year and not the actual amount paid by the council. The General
Fund balance however is charged with the actual amount paid. Any adjustments are made in
the Statement of Movement in Reserves to this effect.
The council is able to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event of early
retirement. Where applicable these are accounted for in the year that the decision is made and
are accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension
Scheme.
Other long-term employee benefits
The council’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than pension plans
is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the
current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair
value of any related assets is deducted. The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on
AA credit-rated bonds that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the council’s
obligations and that are denominated in the same currency in which the benefits are expected
to be paid. The calculation is performed using the projected unit credit method. Any actuarial
gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when the council is committed
demonstrably, without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either
terminate employment before the normal retirement date, or to provide termination benefits as a
result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits for voluntary
redundancies are recognised as an expense if the council has made an offer of voluntary
redundancy, it is probable that the offer will be accepted, and the number of acceptances can
be estimated reliably. If benefits are payable more than 12 months after the reporting date, then
they are discounted to their present value.
Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end.
They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave,
bonuses and non-monetary benefits for current employees. These are recognised as an
expense in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an undiscounted basis to
the related service provided to the council.
An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlement earned by employees but not taken before
the year-end which the employee can carry forward into the next financial year. The accrual is
charged to the surplus or deficit on the provision of services, but then reversed out through the
Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday benefits are charged to the revenue in the
financial year in which the holiday absence occurs. Based on data collected over a 3 year
period, the accrual for short term employee benefits did not change much year on year.
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Events after the Balance Sheet Date

An authority shall adjust the amounts in the financial statements to reflect adjusting events, both
favourable and unfavourable, which provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the
reporting period and such events that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date
when the financial statements are authorised for issue.
f)

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another. The term ‘financial instrument’ covers both financial assets
and financial liabilities and includes both the most straightforward financial assets and liabilities
such as trade receivables and trade payables and the most complex ones such as derivatives and
embedded derivatives.
The council recognises an asset or liability on the Balance Sheet when the council becomes party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The council has identified that its Financial
Instruments of a material nature comprise trade receivables, trade payables, cash and
investments.
Investments shown in the Balance Sheet relate to cash deposits. The value of cash deposits is the
principal amount invested.
Financial assets are classified into two types; loans and receivables and available-for-sale assets.
Loans and receivables are measured at fair value and appear in the Balance Sheet at the
amortised cost. The council does not have any available-for-sale finance assets.
Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value and are carried at their amortised cost.
Financial assets are recognised on the balance sheet when the council becomes party to the
financial instrument contract or, in the case of trade receivables, when the goods or services have
been delivered. Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights have expired or the
asset has been transferred.
Financial Assets
Financial assets are classified into the following categories: financial assets ‘at fair value through
profit and loss’; ‘held to maturity investments’; ‘available for sale’ financial assets, and ‘loans and
receivables’. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition.
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
Embedded derivatives that have different risks and characteristics to their host contracts, and
contracts with embedded derivatives whose separate value cannot be ascertained, are treated as
financial assets at fair value through profit and loss. They are held at fair value, with any resultant
gain or loss recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The net gain or
loss incorporates any interest earned on the financial asset.
Held to maturity investments
Held to maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity, and there is a positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. After
initial recognition, they are held at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment. Interest is recognised using the effective interest method.
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Available for sale financial assets
Available for sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as
available for sale or that do not fall within any of the other three financial asset classifications.
They are measured at fair value with changes in value taken to the Available for Sale Reserve,
with the exception of impairment losses. Accumulated gains or losses are recycled to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on de-recognition.
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
which are not quoted in an active market. After initial recognition, they are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment. Interest is recognised
using the effective interest method.
Fair value is determined by reference to quoted market prices where possible, otherwise by
discounted cash flows or other valuation techniques.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
At the balance sheet date, the council assesses whether any financial assets, other than those
held at ‘fair value through profit and loss’ are impaired. Financial assets are impaired and
impairment losses recognised if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events which occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and which has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the asset.
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the revised future
cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. The loss is recognised in the
income statement and the carrying amount of the asset is reduced directly, or through a
provision for impairment of receivables.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through the income statement to the extent that the
carrying amount of the receivable at the date of the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
Financial liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet when the council becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instrument or, in the case of trade payables, when the
goods or services have been received. Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the liability
has been discharged, that is, the liability has been paid or has expired.
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at fair value through profit and loss’
or other financial liabilities.
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
Embedded derivatives that have different risks and characteristics to their host contracts, and
contracts with embedded derivatives whose separate value cannot be ascertained, are treated
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss. They are held at fair value, with any
resultant gain or loss recognised in the income statement. The net gain or loss incorporates any
interest earned on the financial asset.
Other financial liabilities
After initial recognition, all other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the life of the asset, to the net carrying amount of the financial
liability. Interest is recognised using the effective interest method.
Financial Instruments – Risks
The Council’s activities expose it to a number of risks, the main ones being:
• Credit Risk – the possibility that other parties may fail to pay the amounts due.
• Liquidity Risk – the possibility that the council cannot pay its commitments.
• Interest Risk – that changes in interest rates will affect the council’s revenue resources.
The council reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks on a regular basis and
they are summarised below:
• Credit risk: to mitigate this risk the parties that owe money are sent timely reminders,
defaulters are given reminders, warnings and ultimately legal action is taken where
necessary.
• Liquidity risk: to mitigate this risk the council ensure that current working capital requirements
are immediately available. Short-term flexibility is achieved by overdraft facilities.
• Interest rate risk: to mitigate this risk the council monitors the available rates, and also
consults with its Treasury Advisors and maintains fixed deposits when good rates are
available. Fixed rate deposits are maintained to maximise interest receivable; variable rate
deposits are maximised for working capital requirements.
In addition the council has adopted the CIPFA Prudential Code and reviews and monitors the
level of exposure to investments which mature beyond one year and the use of specified and
non-specified investments.
However, the overall risk relating to financial instruments is very low for the council because it is
debt free.
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Government Grants and Contributions

Applications for grant support are made to government departments and other organisations
such as the European Union and the lottery boards whenever the opportunity becomes
available.
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Authority when there is reasonable
assurance that:
• the Authority will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and
Amounts recognised as due to the council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been satisfied.
Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential
embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or contribution are required to be consumed by
the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to
the transferor.Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been
satisfied are carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant
or contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and
contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ring fenced revenue grants and
all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,
they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital
Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment
Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve are transferred to the Capital
Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure.
h)

Intangible Assets

The council capitalise purchased intangible assets at cost, where economic benefits are greater
than 12 months. Once capitalised, the assets will be amortised on a systematic basis over their
useful lives. The assets are also tested for impairment when there is an indication that the asset
might be impaired. The amortisation and impairment charge will be made to the relevant service
lines in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any gain or loss arising from
the disposal or abandonment of an intangible asset is charged to the Other Operating
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and expenditure Statement.
Costs that are directly associated with the purchase and implementation of identifiable and
unique software products by the council are recognised as intangible assets. Expenditures that
enhance and extend the benefits of computer software programs beyond their original
specifications and lives are recognised as a capital improvement and added to the original cost
of the software.
Expenditure is only capitalised if costs can be measured reliably, the product is technically and
commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable and the council has sufficient
resources to complete development and to use the asset.
Intangible assets relating to licences obtained as part of the council’s business combinations are
recorded initially at their cost.
Other intangible assets are stated at cost less amortisation on a straight-line basis over the
following periods:
 Software: 3 to 5 years.
 Licences: 3 years or less if the licence term is shorter.
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Inventories

Inventory is shown in the Balance Sheet on an actual cost basis. This does not accord with the
Code of Practice which recommends that inventory is carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is the price paid less any rebates, trade discounts or subsidies. It also
includes delivery charges and import duties, but does not include value added taxes or
advertising and administration costs. The amounts involved are not material. The inventory held
by the council range from IT consumables to waste bins, and therefore there is little or no
wastage. As a result the council does not maintain a provision for obsolete inventory. Cost is
based on the first-in, first-out (FIFO) principle.
j)

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered
separately for classification.
Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in
return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of specific assets.
Finance Leases
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet at
the commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the present
value of the minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is matched by a liability
for the obligation to pay the lessor. Initial direct costs of the council are added to the carrying
amount of the asset. Premiums paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing down the lease
liability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.
Lease payments are apportioned between:
 a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment – applied to
write down the lease liability, and
 a finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).
Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the
policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the
lease term if this is shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life (where ownership of the
asset does not transfer to the authority at the end of the lease period).
The council is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation or revaluation and
impairment losses arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made from
revenue funds towards the deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory
requirements. Depreciation and revaluation and impairment losses are therefore substituted by a
revenue contribution in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the
Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between
the two.
Operating Leases
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as an expense of the services benefitting from use of the leased property, plant or
equipment. Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does
not ma tch the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a rent-free period at the commencement of the
l
)
East Northamptonshire Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19

26

Statement of Accounting Policies

2018/19

lease).
Finance Leases
Where the council grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the
relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the commencement of the lease,
the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or
Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. A gain, representing the
council's net investment in the lease, is credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the
carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal), matched by a lease (long-term debtor) asset in
the Balance Sheet.
Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between:
 a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property – applied to write down the lease
debtor (together with any premiums received), and
 finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).
The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on disposal is not
permitted by statute to increase the General Fund Balance and is required to be treated as a capital
receipt. Where a premium has been received, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the
Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the amount due in
relation to the lease asset is to be settled by the payment of rentals in future financial years, this is
posted out of the General Fund Balance to the Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement
in Reserves Statement. When the future rentals are received, the element for the capital receipt for
the disposal of the asset is used to write down the lease debtor. At this point, the Deferred Capital
Receipts are transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve.
The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non current
assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are
therefore appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.
Operating Leases
Where the council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the
asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other Operating
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are made on a
straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease are added to the carrying amount
of the relevant asset and charged as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income.
k)Assets held for Sale
When the value of non-current assets is expected to be recovered principally through sale rather
than through continuing usage, they are classified as non-current assets held for sale. With the
exception of assets arising from employee benefits and financial instruments, these assets are
classified as current and are stated at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell.
The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of
this amount and fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a loss in fair value, the loss is
recognised in Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only upto the amount previously lost in the Surplus
and Deficit on Provision of services. Depreciation is not charged on assets held for sale. If the
asset does no longer meet the criteria to be classified as an asset held for sale, they are recla
ssifie d back to non -cur rent asse ts and valued at the lower of their carrying amount
before
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y g
they were classified as held for sale.
l)
Property Plant and Equipment
Recognition

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be
used during more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment.
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is
capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits
or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Authority and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential
to deliver future economic benefits or service potential (ie repairs and maintenance) is charged
as an expense when it is incurred.
The council has a general de-minimis limit of £5k for capital expenditure purposes which results in
the capitalisation of expenditure above that limit as an asset in the Balance Sheet. Items below
this limit are charged to revenue.
The council will recognise significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment
where that assets value is greater than £800k and the component is more than 25% of the total
assets value. Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives,
they are accounted for as separate items (major component) of property, plant and equipment.
Where a component is replaced or restored (i.e. enhancements), the carrying amount of the old
component shall be derecognised to avoid double counting and the new component reflected in
the carrying amount, subject to the recognition principles as set out above being met.
Measurement
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising all expenditure that is directly attributable to
bringing the asset into working condition for its intended use. Assets are then carried in the
Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:
• Other Land and Buildings -

Existing Use Value

• Vehicles, Plant and Equipment -

Historic Cost

• Heritage Assets -

Open Market Value or Insurance Value

• Infrastructure -

Historic Cost

• Community Assets -

Historic Cost

• Surplus Assets -

Fair Value

Where there is no market-based evidence of current value because of the specialist nature of an
asset, depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of current value.
Where non-property assets that have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated
historical cost basis is used as a proxy for current value.
Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure
that their carrying amount is not materially different from their current value at the year-end, but
as a minimum every five years. Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation
Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. [Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the Surplus or
Deficit on the Provision of Services where they arise from the reversal of a loss previously
charged to a service.]
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Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by:
• where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the
carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the
accumulated gains)
• where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying
amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement.
The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 the date of its
formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital
Adjustment Account.
A full valuation of East Northamptonshire Council’s Land and Buildings was last undertaken as at
31st March 2015 by Wilks Head and Eve LLP, 3rd Floor, 55 New Oxford Street, London, WC1A
1BS. Each year high value assets only will be reviewed and any material revaluation may be
included to comply with the Code of Practice. The valuations have been made in accordance
with the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors Appraisal and Valuation Manual.
Fair Valuation
The Council measures some of its non-current assets such as surplus assets at fair value at each
reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement assumes the following:

•

In the principal market for the asset [or liability], or

•

In the absence of a principal market, the most advantageous market for the asset [or
liability]

The Council measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset [or liability], assuming that market participants
would use when pricing the asset [or liability], assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.
When measuring the fair value of a non-current asset, consideration is given to the participants
ability to generate economic benefit by using the asset in its highest and best use. This
assessment is carried out on behalf of the Council by appointed valuers, Wilkes Head and Eve,
who will adopt valuation techniques that are appropriate to the circumstances and for which
sufficient data is available, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs. These techniques are categorised into hierarchies, as follows:
•

Level 1 – quoted prices in an active market for identical assets [or liability] that the
Council can access at the measurable date

•

Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for
the asset [or liability] , either directly or indirectly.

•

Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the asset [or liability].

Impairment
Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of
the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.
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• where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the
carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the
accumulated gains).
• where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying
amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement.
Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant
service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of
the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not been
recognised.
Disposals
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the value of the asset in the Balance Sheet
and the receipt from disposal are written off to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as part of the loss or gain on disposal. Any revaluation gains in the Revaluation
Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.
Income from the disposal of non current assets is accounted for on an accruals basis and the
unapplied balance is included in the balance sheet as useable capital receipts. There is a £10k
de-minimis for capital receipts.
Depreciation
Depreciation is provided for on all tangible assets except freehold land and assets under
construction. Depreciation is provided for on other assets with a determinable finite life by
allocating the value of the asset in the Balance Sheet over the periods expected to benefit from
their use. Depreciation is calculated on the opening book value with no charge being made in
the period of acquisition but a full charge in the period of disposal.
Depreciation is calculated over the expected life of each asset. The “straight-line method” of
calculation is used, except for vehicles, where the “reducing balance method” is used. No
depreciation charge is applied to land. Buildings and other assets are depreciated over the
following periods:
• Other land and buildings:

Up to 50 years

• Infrastructure Assets:

Up to 35 years

• Vehicles, plant and equipment:

3-10 years

• Surplus Assets

Up to 50 years

Where an item of property, plant and equipment asset has major components whose cost is
significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately.
Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current
value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable
based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the
Capital Adjustment Account.
Assets Under Construction
Assets under construction are recognised only when it is probable that the future economic
benefits will flow to the council and the cost can be measured reliably. Assets under construction
are capitalised at cost which includes labour and overhead costs arising directly from the
construction of the asset. Assets under construction are not depreciated until they are bought
into use under the relevant sections of property plant and equipment.
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Heritage Assets

Heritage Assets are those assets that are intended to be preserved in trust for future
generations because of their cultural, environmental or historical associations. They are held by
the council in pursuit of its overall objective in relation to the maintenance of heritage. Heritage
Assets held by the council include Civic regalia in the form of pictures and mayoral chains.
These assets have a collective value of less than £10k and have never been capitalised. Any
subsequent purchases of heritage assets will be measured in line with the council's accounting
policies on property plant and equipment.
n)

Provisions

Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or amount. They are recognised when the council
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is likely that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably
estimated.
Provisions are presented in the Accounts at the present value of the estimated future outflows
expected to be required to settle the obligation. Provision charges and reversals are charged to
the appropriate service revenue account. Any discount unwinding is recognised as a finance
expense.
Provisions are recognised for unavoidable lease payments in onerous contracts as the
difference between the rentals due and any income expected to be derived from the vacant
properties being sublet.

o)

Reserves

The council has established a number of reserves to allow specific future objectives to be
financed. It also retains general balances to allow for contingencies and for cash flow
management purposes. Details are shown in note 9.
Reserves are created by appropriating amounts in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When
expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service
revenue account in that year to score against the Net Cost of Services in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then appropriated back into the General
Fund Balance so that there is no net charge against council tax for the expenditure.
By law, the council may use its Useable Capital Receipts Reserve only to finance capital
expenditure. The Revaluation Reserve cannot be used to finance either revenue or capital
expenditure.
p)

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute results from expenditure of a capital
nature where no non currents assets are created for the council. They include private sector
renewal grants and advances to other parties to finance capital investments.
This also includes exceptional revenue expenditure for which a capitalisation direction can be
granted to allow this expenditure to be funded from capital. The capitalisation direction gives the
council the flexibility to treat specified revenue expenditure as capital expenditure. The council
has to meet strict criteria and should only be sought for costs which are due largely to factors
beyond the control of the council and are unavoidable.
The council generally writes off revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute to
revenue in the year in which it is created.
Where the council has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital
resources or by borrowing, a transfer to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the
amounts charged in the Movement in Reserves Statement so there is no impact on the level of
council tax.
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Value Added Tax (VAT)

Income & Expenditure excludes any amounts related to VAT, as all VAT collected is payable to
HM Revenue and Customs and all VAT paid is recoverable from them.
r)

Joint Operations

A Joint Operation is an arrangement by which the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement and have the rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities relating to the
arrangement. All parties have joint control with decisions of the activities of the arrangement
requiring unanimous consent from all parties. The council recognises on its Balance Sheet the
assets that it controls and the liabilities that it incurs and debits and credits the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement with the expenditure it incurs and the share of income it
earns from the activity of the operation.
• its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly
• its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly
• its revenue from the sales of its share of the output arising from the joint operation
• its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint operation
• its epxenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly.

s)

Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and
Errors

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a
material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the
current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period
adjustment.
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or
the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other
events and conditions on the councils financial position or financial performance. Where a
change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been
applied.
Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.
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Accounting standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted

At the balance sheet date the following new standards and amendments to existing
standards have been published but not yet adopted by the Code of Practice of Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom:
IFRS 16 Leases will require local authorities that are lessees to recognise most leases on
their balance sheets as right-of-use assets with corresponding lease liabilities (there is
recognition for low-value and short-term leases). CIPFA/LASAAC have deferred
implementation of IFRS16 for local government to 1 April 2020.
IAS 40 Investment Property: Transfers of Investment Property provides further explanation
of the instances in which a property can be reclassified as investment property. This will have
no impact on the Council as it already complies.
IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration clarifies the
treatment of payments in a foreign currency made in advance of obtaining or delivering
services or goods. The Council does not have any material transactions within the scope of
the amendment.
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments provides additional guidance on
income tax treatment where there is uncertainty. This will have no impact on accounts.
IFRS 9 Financial instruments: prepayment features with negative compensation amends
IFRS9 to make clear that amortised cost should be used where prepayments are
substantially lower than the unpaid principal and interest. The Council has no loans to whom
this will apply.
2

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In applying the accounting policies set out in Statement of Accounting Policies, the council has had
to make certain judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future
events. The critical judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are:
• High degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local government. However, the
council has determined that this uncertainty is not yet sufficient to provide an indication that the
assets of the council might be impaired as a result of a need to close facilities and reduce levels
of service provision.
• The continued volatility of business rates; in particular the significant increase in applications for
appeals submitted prior to 1 April 2015 and the potential impact in the council's finances in
particular provisions and reserves following a review of the estimates and assumptions used to
understand the impact.
• The level of risk faced by the council and the setting aside of reserve balances to reflect the
level of risk appropriately.
3

Assumptions made about the future and other major sources of estimation
uncertainty

In the preparation of the consolidated Accounts, a number of estimates and assumptions have
been made relating to the reporting of results of operations and the financial position of the
council. The actual results may differ from those estimates under different assumptions and
conditions. It is considered that the following addresses the council’s most critical accounting
estimates and judgements, which are those that are most important to the presentation of its
consolidated financial position and results. These particular policies require subjective and
complex judgements, often as a result of the need to make estimates about the effect of matters
that are uncertain.
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Assumptions made about the future and other major sources of estimation
uncertainty (continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
The council assigns useful lives and residual values to property, plant and equipment based on
periodic studies of actual asset lives and the intended use for those assets. Changes in
circumstances such as technological advances, prospective economic utilisation and physical
condition of the assets concerned could result in the actual useful lives or residual values differing
from initial estimates.
Where the council determines that the useful life of property, plant and equipment should be
shortened or residual value reduced, it depreciates the net book value in excess of the residual
value over the revised remaining useful life, thereby increasing depreciation expense. Any change
in an asset’s life or residual value is reflected in the council’s accounts when the change in
estimate is determined.
Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
The council assesses the impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
(excluding goodwill) whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may not be recoverable or otherwise as required by accounting standards.
Factors that are considered important and which could trigger an impairment review include:
• obsolescence or physical damage,
• significant changes in technology and regulatory environments,
• significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating
results,
• significant changes in the use of its assets or the strategy of the overall business,
• significant negative industry or economic trends, and decline in the market capitalisation
relative to net book value for a sustained period.
The identification of impairment indicators, the estimation of future cash flows and the
determination of the recoverable amount for assets or cash generating units requires significant
judgement which is determined by a qualified external valuer.
Impairment allowance for doubtful debt
The Impairment allowance for doubtful debt reflects the council’s estimates of losses arising from
the failure or inability of the council’s customers to make required payments. The allowance is
based on the age of customers debts, customer credit worthiness and the council’s historical
write-off experience. Changes to the allowance may be required if the financial condition of the
council’s customers improves or deteriorates. An improvement in financial condition may result in
lower actual write-offs.
Provisions
A provision is recognised when there is a present (legal or constructive) obligation in respect of a
past event. Judgement is required to quantify such amounts.
Pensions
The council provides a defined benefit pension scheme for its employees. The asset (or liability)
recognised in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit pension plans represents the fair
value of scheme assets less the present value of the defined benefit obligations at the reporting
date. The expected cost of providing these defined benefit pensions will depend on an
assessment of such factors as:
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Assumptions made about the future and other major sources of estimation
uncertainty (continued)

• the life expectancy of the officers,
• the length of service,
• the rate of salary progression,
• the rate of return earned on assets in the future,
• the rate used to discount future pension liabilities, and
• future inflation rates.
The assumptions used by the council are set out in note 34 and estimates chosen from a range of
possible actuarial assumptions which may not necessarily be borne out in practice but have been
comparable to the median estimates in this regard used by other councils. Changes to these
assumptions could materially affect the size of the defined benefit schemes’ liabilities and assets
disclosed in note 34.
Fair value estimation
The nominal value of receivables (less any valuation allowance) and payables are assumed to
approximate their fair values. Judgement is required in determining the appropriate assumptions
underlying those inputs and forecasts.
The fair value of financial liabilities measured at amortised cost is estimated by discounting the
future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the council for
similar financial instruments. Discounted cash flows are used to determine the fair value for the
majority of remaining financial instruments.
4

Material items of income and expenditure

Depreciation on tangible assets
Housing benefit payments
Housing benefit administration grant
Housing benefit rent allowance
Profit and loss on non current asset disposal
Property, plant & equipment

5

2018/19
£000
793
16,516
(188)
(16,133)

2017/18
£000
820
17,978
(207)
(17,434)

(640)

(330)

Events after the balance sheet date

The council’s 2018/19 Statement of Accounts were authorised for issue on 30th May by Glenn
Hammons, Chief Finance Officer and was done so after due consideration to any post balance
sheet events at that point in time.
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Expenditure and Funding Analysis

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis demonstrates how the funding available to the Council for
the year 2018/19 (i.e. government grants, rents, Council Tax and Business Rates) has been used
to provide services in comparison with those resources consumed or earned under generally
accepted accounting practice (GAAP). The Expenditure and Funding analysis also shows how
this expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes between the Council’s directorates.
Income and expenditure accounted for under GAAP is presented more fully in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Net Expenditure in the
Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure
Statement

Net Expenditure
Chargeable to the General
Fund

£000

£000

£000

£000

903

(104)

799

1,597

944

2,541

2,506
887
1,270
1,392

1,168
(613)
(19)
876

3,674
274
1,251
2,268

318

199

517

8,873

2,451

11,324

(7,857)

(6,115)

(13,972)

1,016
(14,064)

1,016

(13,048)

(3,664)

(2,648)

Corporate and Democratic
Core
Customer and Community
Services
Environmental Services
ICT
Resources and Org Dev
Planning Services
Economic & Commercial
Development
Cost of Service
Other Income and
Expenditure
(Surplus) or Deficit on
Provision of Services
Opening General Fund
Balance
(Surplus)/deficit arising on
General Fund during the
year
Closing General fund
Balance

Adjustments between the
Funding and Accounting
Basis
Net Expenditure in the
Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure
Statement

Adjustments between the
Funding and Accounting
Basis

2018/19

Net Expenditure
Chargeable to the General
Fund

2017/18 - Restated

£000

£000

172

(172)

0

1,589
3,129
884
2,371
1,345

942
1,179
(842)
299
804

2,531
4,308
42
2,670
2,149

308
9,798

(254)
1,956

54
11,754

(16,500)

404

(16,096)

(6,702)

2,360

(4,342)

(13,048)

(6,702)

(19,750)
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2018/19

Expenditure and Funding Analysis (continued)

Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis 2018/19
Adjustments
from General
Fund to arrive at
the
Net change for the
Comprehensive
Adjustments for
Income and
Pensions
Expenditure
Capital Purposes Adjustments (Note Other differences
2)
(Note 3)
Statement
(Note 1)
£000
£000
£000
Corporate and
democratic core
Customer &
Community
Services
Environmental
Services
ICT
Resources & Org
Dev
Planning Services
Economic
Development
Net Cost of
Service
Other Income and
expenditure from
the Expenditure
and Funding
Analysis

Difference
between General
Fund Surplus or
deficit and
Comprehensive
Income and
Expenditure
Statement
Surplus or Deficit
on the Provision
of Services

Total
Adjustments
£000

0

0

(172)

(172)

429

50

464

943

226
287

81
0

872
(1,129)

1,179
(842)

0

223

75

298

0

144

659

803

119

1

(374)

(254)

1,061

499

395

1,956

36

629

(260)

405

1,097

1,128

135

2,361
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2018/19

Expenditure and Funding Analysis (continued)

Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis 2017/18
Adjustments
from General
Fund to arrive at
the
Net change for the
Comprehensive
Adjustments for
Income and
Pensions
Expenditure
Capital Purposes Adjustments (Note Other differences
2)
(Note 3)
Statement
(Note 1)
£000
£000
£000

Total
Adjustments
£000

Corporate and
democratic core
Customer &
Community
Services
Environmental
Services
ICT
Resources & Org
Dev.

0

0

(104)

(104)

437

60

447

944

267
253

90
0

811
(866)

1,168
(613)

0

7

(26)

(19)

0

96

781

877

658

0

(459)

199

1,615

253

584

2,452

(24)

608

(6,699)

(6,115)

1,591

861

(6,115)

(3,663)

Planning Services
Revenue &
Benefits
Net Cost of
Service

Other Income and
expenditure from
the Expenditure
and Funding
Analysis

Difference
between General
Fund Surplus or
deficit and
Comprehensive
Income and
Expenditure
Statement
Surplus or Deficit
on the Provision
of Services
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2018/19

Expenditure and Funding Analysis (continued)
1) Adjustments for Capital Purposes
Adjustments for capital purposes - this column adds in depreciation and impairments and
revaluation gains and losses in the services line and for:
• Other operating expenditure - adjusts for capital disposals with a transfer of income on
disposal of assets and the amounts written off for those assets.
• Financing and investment income and expenditure - the statutory charges for capital
financing i.e. Minimum Revenue Provision and other revenue contributions are deducted
from other income and expenditure as these are not chargeable under generally accepted
accounting practices
• Taxation and non-specific income and expenditure - capital grants are adjusted for
income not chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices. Revenue grants are
adjusted from those receivable in the year to those receivable without conditions or which
conditions were satisfied throughout the year. The Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income
and Expenditure line is credited with capital grants receivable in the year without conditions
or for which conditions were satisfied in the year.
2) Net Change for the Pensions Adjustments
Net Changes for the removal of pension contributions and the addition of IAS 19 Employee
Benefits pension related expenditure and income:
• For Services this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions made by the
authority as allowed by statute and the replacement with current service costs and past
service costs.
• For Financing and investment income and expenditure - the net interest on the defined
benefit liability is charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
3) Other Differences
Other differences between amounts debited/credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement and amounts payable/receivable to be recognised under statute:
• Financing and investment income and expenditure the other differences column
recognises adjustments to the General Fund for the timing differences for premiums and
discounts.
• The charge under Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure represents
the difference between what is chargeable under statutory regulations for council tax and
Non Domestic Rates that was projected to be received at the start of the year and the income
recognised under generally accepted accounting practices in the Code. This is a timing
difference as any difference will be brought forward in future Surpluses or Deficits on the
Collection Fund.
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2018/19

Segmental Analysis of Expenditure and Funding by nature

The authority’s expenditure and income is analysed as follows:

2018/19
£000
(6,436)

2017/18
£000
(4,419)

(20,726)

(22,903)

(198)
(7,759)
(14,457)
(640)
(148)
(428)
(50,792)

(102)
(7,114)
(12,598)
(330)
(133)
0
(47,598)

8,315

7,710

Other service expenses

26,258

26,367

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
Support Service Recharges
Interest payments
Pension interest and costs
Precepts and levies
Revenue contribution to capital
Total expenditure

1,733
0
0
629
9,516
0
46,451

2,145
(651)
2
608
8,769
0
44,950

Surplus or deficit on the provision of services

(4,342)

(2,648)

Fees, charges & other service income
Income from council tax, government grants and
contributions
Interest and investment income
Demand on collection fund
Non-domestic rate redistribution
Profit on disposal of assets
Transfer to collection fund
Support Service Recharges
Total income
Employee expenses

East Northamptonshire Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19

40

Notes to the Accounts
8

2018/19

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and
expenditure recognised by the Authority in the year in accordance with proper accounting practice
to the resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the Authority to
meet future capital and revenue expenditure.

2018/19

General
Fund
£000

Usable Reserves
Capital
Grants
Receipts
Unapplied
£000
£000

Movement in
Unusable
Reserves
£000

Adjustment primarily involving the Capital Adjustment Account - Reversal of items debited or
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:
Charges for depreciation and impairment
of non-current assets

776

0

0

(776)

Movement in market value of investment
assets

55

0

0

(55)

218

0

0

(218)

(657)

0

0

657

Revenue expenditure funded from capital
under statute

684

0

0

(684)

Amounts of non-current assets written off
on disposal or sale as part of the gain/
loss on disposal to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement

54

0

0

(54)

Capital Expenditure charged against the
General Fund

0

0

0

0

(52)

0

0

52

Amortisation of intangible assets
Capital grants and contributions applied

Statutory provision for the financing of
capital investment

Adjustment primarily involving the Capital Grants Unapplied Account:
Capital grants and contributions
unapplied credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement

0

0

(36)

36

Transfer from Grants Unapplied

0

0

0

0

(694)

694

0

0

0

(4,281)

0

4,281

Adjustment primarily involving the Capital Receipts Reserve:
Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited
as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to
finance new capital expenditure

Adjustments primarily involving the Pensions Reserve:
Reversal of items relating to retirement
benefits debited or credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement

2,864

0

0

(2,864)

Employer’s pensions contributions and
direct payments to pensioners payable in
the year

(1,736)

0

0

1,736
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2018/19

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations
(continued)

Adjustments primarily involving the Collection Fund Adjustment Account:
Usable Reserves
2018/19

Amount by which council tax and non
domestic rate income credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement is different from the amount
taken to the General Fund in accordance
with statutory requirements

Total Adjustments

General
Fund
£000

Capital
Receipts
£000

Grants
Unapplied
£000

Movement in
Unusable
Reserves
£000

849

0

0

(849)

2,361

(3,587)

(36)

1,263

Usable Reserves

Movement in
General
Capital
Grants
Unusable
2017/18
Reserves
Fund
Receipts
Unapplied
£000
£000
£000
£000
Adjustment primarily involving the Capital Adjustment Account - Reversal of items debited or
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:
Charges for depreciation and impairment
of non-current assets

820

0

0

(820)

Movement in market value of investment
assets

570

0

0

(570)

Amortisation of intangible assets

200

0

0

(200)

(559)

0

0

559

Revenue expenditure funded from capital
under statute

555

0

0

(555)

Amounts of non-current assets written off
on disposal or sale as part of the gain/
loss on disposal to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement

33

0

0

(33)

(4,316)

0

0

4,316

(337)

0

0

337

Capital grants and contributions applied

Capital Expenditure charged against the
General Fund
Statutory provision for the financing of
capital investment

Adjustment primarily involving the Capital Grants Unapplied Account:
Capital grants and contributions
unapplied credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement

0

0

74

(74)

Transfer from Grants Unapplied

0

0

(39)

39
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2018/19

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations
(continued)
Usable Reserves
2017/18

General
Fund
£000

Capital
Receipts
£000

Grants
Unapplied
£000

Movement in
Unusable
Reserves
£000

Adjustment primarily involving the Capital Receipts Reserve:
Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited
as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to
finance new capital expenditure

(363)

363

0

0

(69)

(510)

0

579

Adjustment primarily involving the Pensions Reserve:
Reversal of items relating to retirement
benefits debited or credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement

2,573

0

0

(2,573)

Employer’s pensions contributions and
direct payments to pensioners payable in
the year

(1,712)

0

0

1,712

Adjustment primarily involving the Collection Fund Adjustment Account:
Amount by which council tax and non
domestic rate income credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement is different from the amount
taken to the General Fund in accordance
with statutory requirements

(1,059)

0

0

1,059

Total Adjustments

(3,664)

(148)

35

3,777
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2018/19

Transfer to/from Earmarked Reserves

This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund balances in Earmarked Reserves
to provide financing for the future expenditure plans and the amounts posted back from
Earmarked Reserves to meet General Fund expenditure in 2018/19.
General Fund
Earmarked
Reserves 2018/19

Balance
1 April 2018
£000

Transfer
Out
£000

Transfer
In
£000

Net
Movement
£000

Balance 31
March 2019
£000

Projects and Other
Investment
Opportunities

2,228

(522)

949

427

2,655

Devolution Options

361

(185)

946

761

1,122

Asset Management
Plan

117

(33)

78

45

162

43

(43)

0

(43)

0

250

0

0

0

250

Womans Tour

92
112
20

0
0
0

24
0
0

24
0
0

116
112
20

Personal Land Charges

154

0

0

0

154

167
72
4,024

(3)
(72)
(379)

20
249
1,162

17
177
783

184
249
4,807

387

0

0

0

387

100
300
2,850

0
0
(102)

142
0
4,518

142
0
4,416

242
300
7,266

92

(41)

0

(41)

51

109

(24)

24

0

109

70

(7)

0

(7)

63

11,547

(1,411)

8,112

6,701

18,249

IT Strategy
Property Investment Advisers
Election Reserve
Insurance Reserve

Planning Reserve
Carry Forwards
Community Projects
Capital Financing
Reserve
Revenue Grants
MTFS Savings
BRR Reserve
Procurement Reserve
Legal Costs
Other small reserves
(below £20k)

Total
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2018/19

Transfer to/from Earmarked Reserves (cont'd)

General Fund
Earmarked
Reserves 2017/18 Restated

Balance 1
April 2017
£000

Transfer
Out
£000

Transfer
In
£000

Net
Movement
£000

Balance 31
March 2018
£000

Projects and Other
Investment
Opportunities

5,694

(4,385)

919

(3,466)

2,228

Asset Management
Plan

66

(24)

75

51

117

25
317

(5)
(274)

340
0

336
(274)

361
43

Property Investment Advisers

250

0

0

0

250

Property Investment Carnegie St

129

(129)

0

(129)

(0)

64

0

28

28

92

112

0

0

0

112

40

(20)

0

(20)

20

0

0

154

Devolution Options
IT Strategy

Election Reserve

Insurance Reserve
Womens Tour
Personal Land Charges
Planning Reserve
Carry Forwards
Community Projects
Capital Financing
Reserve
Revenue Grants
MTFS Savings
BRR Reserve
Procurement Reserve
Legal Costs
Other small reserves
(below £20k)
Total

Reserve

154
229
180
3,204

(62)
(180)
(306)

0
72
1,127

(62)
(108)
821

167
72
4,024

387

0

0

0

387

100
700
559
146
125

0
(400)
0
(54)
(16)

0
0
2,290

0
(400)
2,290
(54)
(16)

100
300
2,850
92
109

81

(14)

2

(12)

70

12,562

(5,867)

4,852

(1,015)

11,548

Purpose

Projects and Other
Fund any project identified within the Effciency Plan
Investment Opportunities
MTFS Reserve

Fund any deficit as identified within the MTFS

Community Projects

Fund project within the community

BRR Reserve

Fund any shortfalls in business rates collected.
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2018/19

Other operating expenditure

(Gain)/Loss on the disposal of non current assets
Parish council precepts
Total
11

2017/18
£000
(330)
2,988
2,658

2018/19
£000
(198)
0
625
427

2017/18
£000
(102)
2
608
508

2018/19

2017/18
£000
Restated
(133)
(2,379)
(24)
(7,114)
(705)
(11,664)
5,229
552
(942)
34
(17,146)

Financing and investment income and expenditure

Interest and investment income
Interest expenses
Net interest on the net defined liability
Total
12

2018/19
£000
(640)
3,413
2,773

Taxation and non specific grant income and expenditure

Transfer of council tax surplus
General government grant
Capital grants and contributions
Council tax income
Revenue support grant (RSG)
Retained business rates
Business rates tariff payment
Business rates levy
Business rates S.31 grant
Transfer of business rates deficit
Total

£000
(148)
(2,435)
36
(7,759)
(414)
(13,346)
5,386
717
(1,111)
(225)
(19,300)
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Cost or Valuation
£000
At 1 April 2018
29,291
Additions
73
Derecognition - disposals
0
Transfers
150
Revaluation gain
5,280
Elimination of accumulated
(358)
depreciation
At 31 March 2019
34,435
Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment
At 1 April 2018
(77)
Depreciation charge
(375)
Derecognition - disposals
0
Elimination of accumulated
358
depreciation
At 31 March 2019
(93)
Net book value
At 31 March 2019
34,342
At 31 March 2018

Assets held at historic cost value at
31 March 2019
Assets held at current cost at 31
March 2019
Total
Assets held at historic cost value at
31 March 2018
Assets held at current cost at 31
March 2018
Total

Total PPE

Community
assets

Assets under
construction

Infrastructure

Vehicles, plant
& equipment

Movements in 2018/19

Surplus Assets

Property, plant and equipment
Other land &
buildings

13

2018/19

£000
626
0
(54)
0
0

£000
£000 £000
6,570 306
17
2,081
0 1,816
0
0
0
(140)
0
0
0
0
0

£000
440
0
0
0
0

£000
37,250
3,970
(54)
10
5,280

0
572

0
0
0
8,512 306 1,833

0
440

(358)
46,098

0
0
0

(4,294) (63)
(409) (9)
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

(4,434)
(793)
0

0
0

0
0
(4,703) (72)

0
0

0
0

358
(4,869)

572

3,809 234 1,833

440

41,229

29,212

626

2,278 243

17

440

32,815

0

0

3,809 234 1,833

440

6,316

34,342

572

0

0

34,914

34,342

572

3,809 234 1,833

440

41,229

0

0

2,278 243

17

440

2,978

29,212

626

0

0

0

0

29,838

29,212

626

2,278 260

0

440

32,816

0

0
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(403)

0

At 31 March 2018

29,289

£000
£000 £000
6,141 306
0
430
0
17
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Total PPE

£000
626
0
0
0

Community
assets

£000
27,095
59
(33)
2,572

Infrastructure
Assets
under
construction

Cost or Valuation
At 1 April 2017
Additions
Derecognition - disposals
Revaluation gain
Elimination of accumulated
depreciation

Movements in 2017/18

Vehicles,
plant &
equipment

Surplus
Assets

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Other land &
buildings

13

2018/19

£000
440
0
0
0

£000
34,608
506
(33)
2,572

0

0

0

(403)

626

6,572 306

17

440

37,250

(52)
(429)
0

0
0
0

(3,911) (54)
(383) (9)
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

(4,017)
(821)
0

403
(77)

0
0

0
0
(4,294) (63)

0
0

0
0

403
(4,435)

29,212
27,042

626
626

2,278 243
2,230 253

17
0

440
440

32,815
30,591

0

0

2,278 243

17

440

2,978

29,212
29,212

626
626

0
0
2,278 260

0
17

0
440

29,838
32,816

0

0

2,230 253

0

440

2,923

27,042
27,042

626
626

0
0
2,230 253

0
0

0
440

27,668
30,591

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment
At 1 April 2017
Depreciation charge
Derecognition - disposals
Elimination of accumulated
depreciation
At 31 March 2018
Net book value
At 31 March 2018
At 31 March 2017

Assets held at historic cost value at
31 March 2018
Assets held at current cost at 31
March 2018
Total
Assets held at historic cost value at
31 March 2017
Assets held at current cost at 31
March 2017
Total
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2018/19

Heritage Assets

East Northamptonshire Council holds Civic regalia in the form of pictures and mayoral chains. The
insurance value is £6,500. As this is not a material amount, they have not been capitalised and
remain off the Balance Sheet.
15

Intangible Assets

The council accounts for its software as intangible assets, to the extent that the software is not an
integral part of a particular IT system and accounted for as part of the hardware item of property,
plant and equipment.
All software is given a finite useful life, based on assessments of the period that the software is
expected to be of use to the council.
The carrying amount of intangible assets is amortised on a straight-line basis. The amortisation of
£218k charged to revenue in 2018/19 was charged to the IT administration cost centre and then
absorbed as an overhead across all the service headings in the Net Expenditure of Services.

Balance at 1 April
Gross carrying amount
Accumulated amortisation
Net carrying amount at 1 April
Purchases
Amortisation for period
Net carrying amount at 31 March
Comprising:
Gross carrying amount
Amortisation
16

2018/19
£000

2017/18
£000

2,316
(1,573)
743

1,841
(1,373)
468

237
(218)
762

475
(200)
743

2,553
(1,791)

2,316
(1,573)

Investment Properties

The following items of income and expense have been accounted for in the comprehensive
income and expenditure statement.

Rental income from investment property
Direct operating expenses arising from investment property

Total

2018/19
£000
286

2017/18
£000
248

0
286

0
248

There are no restrictions on the Authority's ability to realise the value inherent in its investment
property or on the Authority's right to the remittance of income and the proceeds of disposal. The
Authority has no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment property or
repairs, maintenance or enhancement.
The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment properties over the
year.
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2018/19

Investment Properties (continued)

Balance at 1 April
Gross carrying amount
Additions
Disposals
Net gains/(losses) from fair value adjustment
Carrying amount at 31 March

2018/19
£000

2017/18
£000

3,318
10
0
(38)
3,290

0
3,888
0
(570)
3,318

Fair Value Hierarchy
All the Council's investment property portfolio has been assessed as Level 2 for valuation
purposes (see Accounting Policies for explanation of fair value levels).
Valuation Techniques used to determine level 2 fair values for investment properties
The fair value of the investment properties has been measured using the Investment Method of
Valuation. The valuers have used a market approach using current market conditions and
recent sales prices and other relevant information for similar assets in the local authority area.
The valuers have taken into consideration the following factors: market rentals and sales
values, yields, void and letting periods, size, configuration, proportions and layout, location,
visibility and access, condition, lease covenants, obsolescence.
Highest and best use of investment properties
In estimating the fair value of the Authority's investment properties, the highest and best use of
the properties is deemed to be their current use.
Valuers
The investment portfolio has been valued at 31st March 2019 by Guy Harbord MA MRICS
IRRV, Partner, Wilks Head and Eve LLP, Newlands House 3rd Floor, 55 New Oxford Street,
London, WC1A 1BS. The valuations have been made in accordance with the Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors Appraisal and Valuation Manual.

17

Financial Instruments

Financial Instruments are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes party to
the contractual provisions of a financial instrument. These are classified based on the buseinss
model for holding the isntructments and their expected cashlfow characteristics.
“any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity”
To meet the new Code requirements, there are a number of different categories. Financial
instruments that are liabilities and not held for trading can be defined as “liabilities at amortised
cost”. Liabilities held for trading are classified as “fair value through profit and loss”. The liabilities
of this council that are also financial instruments are all defined “liabilities at amortised cost”. The
council does not hold liabilities for trading purposes.
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Financial Instruments (continued)

Creditors - short term
Creditors - long term
Total

2018/19
£000
4,786
0
4,786

2017/18
£000
6,215
0
6,215

Financial Assets are now classifed into one of three categories; Financial Assets held at amortised
costs; i.e loans where interest and principal take plalce on a set date and specified amount. Fair
Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI); i.e. assets caried and measured at fair
value and Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVTPL) There assets are defined as either “loans
and receivables” or “available for sale assets”.
“Available for sale assets” are in effect securities that are quoted on an active market. The
effective rate of interest is credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and
changes in value shown in the Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve. The council has
no such financial instruments.
Loans and receivables are defined as financial assets that have fixed payments but are not quoted
in an active market, such as debtors and bank deposits. These are carried at amortised cost and
income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, calculated using the effective
rate of interest. Loans and receivables for East Northamptonshire Council are shown in the
table below:
2018/19
2017/18
£000
£000
Restated
Debtors (including soft loans)
2,722
2,342
Cash and cash equivalents
15,271
10,805
Short-term investments
9,000
13,000
Total
26,993
26,147
Local authorities sometimes make loans to organisations at less than market rates where this
supports their objectives. These are known as “soft loans”. The Code and Local Government
accounting practices requires that where material, the loss in interest is treated as an impairment
in the value of the loan and the cost of the impairment is shown in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement. The cost is removed from the General Fund balance by using the
Financial Instruments Adjustment Account. Soft loans for East Northamptonshire Council total
£10.1k, which is considered immaterial to the accounts so no adjustment is required through the
Financial Instruments Adjustment Account.
Key Risks
Councils should have due regard for the risks associated with the financial instruments held.
Attention to risk by the council is enabled in a number of ways. The council adheres to the Local
Government Act (2003) and supporting regulations in following the Prudential Code. This requires
the council to publish Prudential Indicators which measure the level and affordability of its
borrowing. These Prudential Indicators are agreed by council and measure:
• Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream,
• Net borrowing requirement,
• Capital financing requirement,
• Authorised limit for external debt,
• Operational boundary for external debt.
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Financial Instruments (continued)

The council has no actual borrowing in 2018/19 and future plans have been assessed as
affordable under the Prudential Code. Furthermore the council has a treasury management
strategy in order to minimise risk when lending out money or borrowing, for instance by
establishing criteria for selecting counter-parties. The council also follows treasury management
best practice as outlined by Chartered Institute of Public Finance Accountancy, in order to reduce
risk.
Credit Risk
The council always runs the risk that debtors do not make payments. Wherever possible, the
council provides services at the point of payment. Risk of non-payment is also reduced by
procedures to monitor, measure debts and pursue debts on behalf of the council. The council
monitors debts using aged debtor reports, reviewing how long debt has been outstanding.
Another type of credit risk is the risk that the council deposits money with financial institutions that
fail. The treasury management strategy outlines procedures to minimise this risk when selecting
counter-parties.
Analysis by financial asset by credit rating at year end

Gross credit exposure by credit
rating at year end
(before collateral held or other
AAA or
AA or
A+/A or
credit enhancements)
equivalen equivalent equivalent
t £000
£000
£000
Cash and liquid deposits
0
14,000
9,000
Total financial assets
0
14,000
9,000

Not rated
£000
0
0

Total
£000
23,000
23,000

Other
£000
0
0

Total
£000
23,000
23,000

Analysis by geographical area at year end

Financial assets by geographical
area at year end
Cash and liquid deposits
Total financial assets

UK
£000
23,000
23,000

Europe
£000
0
0

Asia
£000
0
0

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the council runs out of cash to manage its day to day cash-flow. To
minimise this risk, the council monitors and anticipates future cash flows in order to plan for
sufficient cash availability. The council has debt collection procedures to ensure that it receives
the money owing. Revenue and capital budgets are fully financed as per Local Government
regulations and agreed by council before the start of the financial year. The council also has an
overdraft facility with its bank in order to manage any short-term timing differences.
Refinancing Risk
Refinancing risk is the risk that when renewing a financial instrument, for example a loan, the
terms deteriorate. Currently the council does not have any outstanding loans so this risk does not
apply.
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Financial Instruments (continued)
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Market Risk
Market risk is the risk of financial loss arising from market movements, for example interest rate
movements.
The changes in interest rates by the Bank of England will have an adverse impact on the
Council, in reducing the interest income received by the council. This risk is mitigated for future
years. Budgets have been set, taking low interest rates into consideration. Also interest rates are
at the bottom of the cycle, which means they are unlikely to fall much further.
Price Risk
This is a risk that there is a change in the value of quoted investments. Excluding the Pension
Fund, the council does not invest in securities and equities with this type of risk. It should be
noted that the council does not manage the pension fund. This is done by Northamptonshire
County Council.
Foreign Exchange Risk
Investments
The council’s investments are detailed below:

Short term investments < 1 year
Short term investments > 1 year
Total investments

2018/19
£000
9,000
0
9,000

2017/18
£000
13,000
0
13,000

The council has £9m in short term investments as at 31st March 2019. Towards the end of
2018/19 financial year the council invested its remaining surplus monies in liquid instant access
accounts, reducing the inherent interest rate risk and increasing security of capital in an uncertain
economic environment. The council continually monitors money market activity and will invest its
surplus cash in line with the approved Treasury Management Strategy.
18

Debtors

The value of short term debtors as at 31 March 2019 is:

Central government bodies
Other local authorities
NHS Bodies
Other entities and individuals
Total

2018/19
£000
424
837
0
1,464
2,725

2017/18
£000
768
580
15
979
2,342

2018/19
£000
2
757
759

2017/18
£000
11
861
872

The value of long term debtors as at 31 March 2019 is:

Car loans
Other
Total
19

Cash and cash equivalents
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The balance of cash and cash equivalents is made up of the following elements:

Cash held by the authority
Short-term deposit with building societies and money
market funds
Total cash and cash equivalents

2018/19
£000
1,279

2017/18
£000
66

13,992

10,739

15,271

10,805

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank, short-term bank deposits and money market
funds.

20

Creditors

The value of short term creditors as at 31 March 2019 is:
2018/19
£000
(1,832)
(1,795)
0
(1,158)
(4,786)

Central government bodies
Other local authorities
Public corporations and trading funds
Other entities and individuals
Total

2017/18
£000
(3,198)
(1,758)
(82)
(1,177)
(6,215)

There is no material difference between the carrying value and fair value of trade and other
payables presented.
21

Provisions

At April 2018
(Arising) or released during the year
Used during the year
At 31 March 2019

NNDR Appeals
£000
(1,360)
149
15
(1,195)

Other
£000
(23)
0
0
(23)

Total
£000
(1,383)
149
15
(1,218)

At April 2017
(Arising) or released during the year
Used during the year
At 31 March 2018

(1,061)
(326)
26
(1,360)

(23)
0
0
(23)

(1,084)
(326)
26
(1,383)

2018/19
£000
(1,195)
(1,195)

2017/18
£000
(1,195)
(1,195)

Expected timing of cash flows
Between 1 to 5 years
Total

NNDR Appeals – a provision has been made upon the best estimate of the actual liability at the
year-end in known appeals. It is not possible to quantify any appeals that have not yet been
lodged with the Valuation Office and as a result there is a risk that these appeals may have an
impact on the councils accounts in the future.
Conservation Grants Provision – a provision has been made for historic building grants that
have been awarded but not claimed. This makes up the majority of the ‘Other’ provisions.
22
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Movements in the council’s usable reserves are detailed in the Movement in Reserves Statement
and in note 8.
23

Unusable reserves

Revaluation reserve
Capital adjustment account
Deferred capital receipts reserve
Pensions reserve
Collection fund adjustment account
Accumulated absence account
Total unusable reserves

2018/19
£000
19,436
25,955
1
(27,710)
227
(57)
17,852

2017/18
£000
14,288
22,584
1
(23,055)
1,076
(57)
14,836

Revaluation Reserve
The Revaluation reserve contains the gains made by the council arising from increases in the
value of its Property, Plant and Equipment. The balance is reduced when assets with
accumulated gains are:
• revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost
• used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation, or
• disposed of and the gains are realised.

Movement in Revaluation reserve
Upward revaluation of assets
Impairment losses not charged to the surplus/deficit on
the provision of services
Difference between fair value depreciation and historical
cost depreciation
Total movement of realised capital resources in year
Balance at 1 April
Balance at 31 March

23

2018/19
£000

2017/18
£000

5,280

2,572

0

0

(132)

(126)

5,148

2,446

14,288
19,436

11,842
14,288

Unusable reserves (continued)
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Capital Adjustment Account
The Capital Adjustment Account recognises the timing differences arising from the different
arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the
acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions. The account
is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation, impairment
losses and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
(with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures to a historical
cost basis). The account is credited with the amounts set aside by the council as finance for the
costs of acquisition, construction and enhancement.
The account contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properties and gains
recognised on donated assets that have yet to be consumed by the council. The account also
contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1 April 2007,
the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains.
Note 8 provides details of the source of all the transactions posted to the account, apart from
those involving the Revaluation Reserve.
2018/19
£000
22,584
Balance at 1 April
Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:
Charges for depreciation and impairment of non current
(793)
assets
Revaluation movement on PPE and Investment
(38)
Properties
Capital Adjustment Account

2017/18
£000
18,883

(820)
(570)

Amortisation of intangible assets
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute

(218)
(684)

(200)
(555)

Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or
sale as part of the gain/ loss on disposal to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

(54)

(33)

(1,787)

(2,178)

132

126

(1,655)

(2,052)

4,281

579

Capital grants and contributions credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement that
have been applied to capital financing

657

559

Applications of Grants to Capital Financing transferred to
the Capital Adjustment Account

36

(35)

Statutory provision for the financing of capital
investments charged against the General Fund

52

334

0
5,026
25,955

4,316
5,753
22,584

Difference between current value depreciation and
historical cost depreciation
Net written out amount of the cost of non current
assets consumed in the year
Capital financing applied in the year:
Use of the Capital Receipts reserve to finance new
capital expenditure

Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund
Balance at 31 March
23 Unusable reserves (continued)
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Pension Reserve
The Pensions reserve recognises the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for
accounting for post employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory
provisions. The council accounts for post employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by employees accruing years of service,
updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns
on any resources set aside to meet the costs. However, statutory arrangements require benefits
earned to be financed as the council makes employer’s contributions to pension funds or
eventually pays any pensions for which it is directly responsible. The debit balance on the
Pensions reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current
employees and the resources the council has set aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements
will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid.

Pension reserve in year movements
Balance at 1 April
Remeasurement of net defined liability
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited
or credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement
Employer’s pensions contributions and direct payments
to pensioners payable in the year
Balance at 31 March

2018/19
£000
(23,055)

2017/18
£000
(23,282)

(3,527)

1,088

(2,864)

(2,573)

1,736

1,712

(27,710)

(23,055)

Collection Fund Adjustment Account
The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the recognition of
council tax income and non domestic rate income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as it falls due from tax payers compared with the statutory arrangements for paying
across amounts to the General Fund from the Collection Fund.
Collection fund adjustments in year
Balance at 1 April
Amount by which council tax and non domestic rate
income credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement is different from the amount
taken to the General Fund in accordance with statutory
requirements
Balance at 31 March

24

2018/19
£000
1,077

2017/18
£000
18

(849)

1,059

228

1,077

Cash flow statement - operating activities
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2018/19
Total (surplus)/deficit on all revenue accounts
£000
Comprehensive income and expenditure account
(surplus)/ deficit
Net (surplus) or deficit on provision of services

2017/18
£000
Restated

(4,342)

(2,648)

(4,342)

(2,648)

Amortisation charges
Depreciation and impairment
Carrying amount of non-current assets sold

(218)
(848)
(54)

(200)
(1,390)
(33)

Collection fund adjustment

(849)

1,059

(2,864)

(2,573)

1,736

1,712

0
153
164

0
(199)
(299)

(4,657)

987

1,089

(2,514)

(6,346)

(3,450)

36

(24)

198
694

100
363

928

439

(9,761)

(5,659)

2018/19
£000

2017/18
£000

4,901

885

(4,000)

6,000

(694)

(569)

0
(236)
(29)

0
(696)
5,620

Net changes made for retirement benefits in accordance
with IAS 19
Employers contributions payable to the pension fund and
retirement benefits payable direct to pensioners
Movement in stock
Movement in provision for bad debts
Movement in other provisions
Movement in debtors
Movement in creditors
Adjustment to net surplus or deficit on the provision
of services for non-cash movements
Capital grants credited to surplus or deficit on the
provision of services
Net interest received
Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment
Adjustments for items included in the net
surplus/deficit for the provision of services that are
investing and financing activities
Net cash flows from operating activities

25

Cash flow statement - investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment
property and intangible assets
Purchase of investments
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and
equipment, investment property and intangible assets
Proceeds from short-term and long-term investments
Other receipts from investing activities
Net cash flows from investing activities

26

Cash flow statement - financing activities
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Cash payment for the reduction of the outstanding
liabilities relating to finance leases
Receipts/ payments from financing activities in relation to
collection of Council Tax and NNDR
Other receipts from financing activities
Net cash flows from financing activities
27

2018/19
£000

2017/18
£000

(285)

334

4,925

(771)

683
5,323

(199)
(636)

Members allowances

The total amount of allowances paid to elected members during 2018/19 was £295k and £254k in
2017/18.
2018/19
£000
205
63
11
6
10
295

Nature of Expenditure
Basic allowance
Special responsibility
Travel & subsistence/ others
Civic duties
IT provision
Total
28

2017/18
£000
187
43
7
6
11
254

Officers emoluments

Salary including
fees & allowances

Expense**
allowances

Compensation for
loss of office

Total remuneration
excluding pension
contributions

Pension
Contributions

Total remuneration
including pension
contributions

The following table summarises the remuneration for Senior Officers whose salary is more than
£50,000 per year.

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

109

2

0

111

37

148

Executive Director Monitoring Officer

87

1

0

88

29

117

Executive Director Resources & Commercial

87

0

0

87

29

116

Head of Environmental
Services

63

1

0

64

21

85

Head of Planning Services

63

0

0

63

21

84

Head of Resources &
Organisational
Development

53

1

0

54

18

72

Head of Community &
Customer Services

58

1

0

59

19

78

Head of Joint Planning Unit

63

1

0

64

21

85

Head of Economic &
Commercial Development

62

0

0

62

21

83

2018/19

Post Title
Chief Executive

28

Officers emoluments (continued)
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allowances

Expense** allowances

Benefits in kind

Total remuneration
excluding pension
contributions

Pension Contributions

Total remuneration
including pension
contributions

2018/19

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

107

1

0

108

36

144

Executive Director Monitoring Officer

86

1

0

87

29

115

Executive Director Resources & Commercial

10

0

0

10

3

13

Head of Environmental
Services

61

1

0

62

21

83

Head of Planning Services

60

1

0

61

20

81

Head of Resources &
Organisational
Development

49

0

58

107

16

123

Head of Community &
Customer Services

54

0

0

55

18

73

Head of Joint Planning Unit

61

1

0

62

21

83

Head of Economic &
Commercial Development

52

6

0

58

17

75

2017/18

Post Title
Chief Executive

**Expense allowances are primarily the reimbursement of business mileage expenses.
Remuneration means all amounts paid to or receivable by an employee, and includes sums due
by way of expenses allowances (as far as those sums are chargeable to United Kingdom income
tax) and the estimated money value of any other benefits received by an employee otherwise than
in cash.
Head of Joint Planning Unit - The Head of the Joint Planning Unit is part of a shared planning
service but is employed by East Northamptonshire Council. Therefore the emoluments are
included in the council's accounts.
Officer's Salaries over £50k
The Authority's other employees receiving more than £50,000 remuneration for the year
(excluding employer's pension contributions) were paid the following amounts:
Officer's Salaries

2018/19

2017/18

£50,000 - £54,999
£55,000 - £59,999

1
0

1
1

28
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Exit Packages
The numbers of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of the compulsory and other
redundancies are set out in the table below:
Exit packages
cost band
(including
special
payments)

Number of
compulsory
redundancies

Number of other
departures
agreed

Total cost of exit
packages in each
band

2017/18

2018/19
£000

2017/18
£000

1

2

7

30

0

0

1

0

23

1
1

0
1

1
4

0
7

58
111

2018/19

2017/18

2018/19

2017/18

£0 - £20,000

0

2

1

0

£20,001 - £40,000

0

1

0

£40,001 - £60,000
Total

0
0

0
3

0
1

29

Total number of
exit packages by
cost band
2018/19

External audit costs

The in-year audit costs relating to external audit and inspection work for both 2018/19 and
2017/18 are detailed below. The audit fee of £39k (2017/18 £51k) relates to statutory audit work,
including the fees for Certification of Grant Claims and returns. No non-audit work has been
undertaken in 2018/19 and 2017/18.

Fees payable with regard to external audit services
carried out by the appointed auditor
Fees payable for the certification of grant claims and
returns
Total
30

2018/19
£000

2017/18
£000

35

45

4

6

39

51

Grant income

The council credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement.

Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income
Revenue support grant
New homes bonus
Other grants
Total

30

2018/19
£000

2017/18
£000

(414)
(2,323)
(112)
(2,849)

(705)
(2,253)
(126)
(3,084)

Grant income (continued)
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Credited to Services
Housing benefits administration grant
Housing benefits rents allowance
Housing Benefits Discretionary Housing Payments
Disabled facility grant
NCC greenway project grant
Council tax support
Homelessness Grant
Other grants
Total

2018/19
£000

2017/18
£000

(188)
(16,133)
(129)
(518)
(233)
(76)
(159)
(519)
(17,954)

(207)
(17,434)
(138)
(514)
(15)
(82)
(24)
(347)
(18,761)

Developers Contributions
The resources held within Developers Contributions have arisen mainly from Section 106
agreements. Section 106 receipts are monies paid to the council by developers as a result of the
grant of planning permission where works are required to be carried out or new facilities provided
as a result of that permission. The sums are restricted to be spent only in accordance with the
agreement concluded with the developer. If any outstanding conditions are not met then the
money would need to be paid back to the developer. The major balances of section 106 receipts
held by the council during the year were as follows:
Capital grants
receipted in advance
Open space
Educational
Affordable housing
Community facility
Environmental
Total
31

01-Apr-18
£000

Income
£000

Expenditure
£000

31-Mar-19
£000

(483)
(89)
1
(7)
(309)
(887)

(88)
(42)
0
(128)
(356)
(615)

208
42
0
181
209
641

(363)
(89)
1
46
(456)
(861)

Related parties

The council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties – bodies or
individuals that have the potential to control or influence the council or to be controlled or
influenced by the council. A ‘related party’ is defined as being an organisation with which the
council has dealings and where either officers or members of the council have a controlling
interest or influence in the activities of that organisation. Disclosure allows readers to assess the
extent to which the council might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or
might have secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the council.
Central Government
Central government is responsible for providing the statutory framework within which the council
operates, provides the majority of its funding in the form of grants and prescribes the terms of
many of the transactions that the council has with other parties (e.g. council tax bills, housing
benefits). Grant receipts outstanding at 31st March 2019 are shown in note 30 Grant Income.
Other Public Bodies
The council has joint working arrangements with other local authorities for the delivery of the
following services:

31
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Joint Planning Unit

Corby Borough Council
Kettering Borough Council
Borough Council of Wellingborough
Northamptonshire County Council

Internal Audit
ICT
Financial Services

Welland Partnership
Borough Council of Wellingborough
Corby Borough Council

Legal Services

Local Government Shared Services (in
partnership with Northamptonshire and
Cambridgeshire County Council)

Procurement

Welland Partnership

Corby Borough Council
Kettering Borough Council
Licensing Admin Unit
Borough Council of Wellingborough
Daventry District Council

2018/19

2018/19
£000

2017/18
£000

72

73

57
(505)
300

57
(453)
297

1

11

25

28

9

9

Assisted Organisations
All grants in 2018/19 were awarded following proper consideration and declaration of interest
made.
In February 2001 the council successfully transferred its housing stock to Spire Homes, a
Registered Social Landlord (RSL). Spire Homes and Midland Heart are contracted to carry out
Housing Services for the council. The value of these contracts was £208k in 2018/19 and £201k
in 2017/18.
Officers
During 2018/19 the only disclosure made by Senior Officers was in relation to a role as a member
of the Board at NeneScape Heritage Landscape Project which is funded by the Heritagte Lotterty.
Nenescape have provided grant aid to Destination Nene Valley,which the council provides
administration support to.
Members
Declaration of Interests
Details of members involved in outside bodies as part of their role as an East Northamptonshire
Councillor can be viewed on the link below:

https://www.eastnorthamptonshire.gov.uk/site/scripts/download_info.php?downloadID=156&fileID=4835
https://www.east-northamptonshire.gov.uk/downloads/355/councillors_-_declaration_of_interest

32
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The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below (including
the value of assets acquired under finance leases), together with the resources that have been
used to finance it. Where capital expenditure is to be financed in future years by charges to
revenue as assets are used by the council, the expenditure results in an increase in the Capital
Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure incurred historically by the
council that has yet to be financed.

Opening capital financing requirement
Capital investment
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Investment properties
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute

Sources of capital finance
Capital receipts
Capital grants
Contribution from general fund
Repayment of finance lease
Closing capital financing requirement
Explanation of movements in year
Repayment of finance lease
Surplus Capital Funding
Increase/(decrease) in capital financing requirement

2018/19
£000
53

2017/18
£000
390

3,969
237
10

490
475
3,905

684

555

4,281
693
0
52
(73)

579
530
4,316
337
53

(52)
(74)

(337)
0

(126)

(337)

Capital expenditure was incurred largely on the refurbishment of the leisure facilities,
refurbishment of dwellings in the form of disability facilities adaptations and IT Licences.
33

Leases

Council as Lessee; Operating Leases
Other Land and Buildings
The council currently has no long term lease agreements for external rental of properties.
Ongoing yearly rental in 2018/19 was £81k (2017/18 £8.4k).
Council as Lessor; Operating Leases
The council has granted leases on several land and buildings, which are accounted for as
operating leases. They include:
• The Pemberton Centre - leisure/conference centre
• Splash Leisure Pool - swimming pool
• Nene Community Centre - combined wet/dry leisure facility.
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The above assets have been leased to Freedom Leisure. The assets are provided as part of the
management contract of East Northamptonshire Council's leisure activies and are leased on
peppercorn basis where no payments are received.
Other operating leases also let on a peppercorn basis where no payments are received or where
annual payments received are less than £500 include:
 Allotments at Crouch Road, Irthlingborough - land leased to Irthlingborough Town Council
for the use of allotments.
 Twywell Hills and Dales, adjacent to A14 junction 11 - land associated with a former quarry
site currently leased to Rockingham Forest Trust on a 399-year lease beginning in May
1997 for recreational and educational purposes.
 Stanwick Lakes - former sand and gravel works leased to Rockingham Forest Trust on a
125-year lease starting on October 2002 for recreational and educational purposes.
Other operating leases which generate an income of greater than £500 Include:
 Industrial Units - 21 units at Enterprise Road, Raunds and Kingsmead, Kings Cliffe. Rentals
received in 2018/19 were £110k (2017/18 £97k). The minimum lease payment receivable
for these industrial units is not material therefore no disclosure has been made.
 Rushden Centre - Rental received in 2018/19 was £71k, (2017/18, £50k) from
Northamptonshire Healthcare NHS.
 Rushden Centre - Rental received in 2018/19 was £7.8k (2017/18 £7.7k) from NCC.
 Thrapston Offices - Rental Income in 2018/19 was £32k (2017/18 £32k) from Progress
Schools
 Rushden Eaton Walkunits - Rental income 2018/19 was £280k (2017/18 £245k) from Wilko
Retail Ltd.

Council as Lessee; Finance Leases
In 2011 the council has entered into a service contract for the provision of environmental services
such as refuse collection and street cleansing. A review of the arrangement has indicated that
was an embedded finance lease included in the contract in relation to the assets being used to
carry out the service. As a result the council is required to include these assets (refuse collection
vehicles) on its Balance Sheet and recognise a liability which in essence will be a payment for the
acquisition of the vehicles over the term of the contract. The service contract was entered into on
August 2011 for a period of 7 years. This contract has now ended. A new contract was entered
into by the council in August 2018. East Northamptonshire Council has purchased the fleet,
therefore there is no embedded finance lease within the arrangement.
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The assets acquired under the lease are carried as property, plant and equipment in the Balance
Sheet at the following net amounts:
2018/19
£000
0
0

Vehicles, plant & equipment
Total

2017/18
£000
147
147

The council is committed to making minimum payments under this embedded lease comprising
settlement of the long-term liability for the interest in the vehicles acquired by the council and
finance costs (based on a 7 year Public Works Loan Boards loan rate of 2.27%) that will be
payable by the council in future years while the liability remains outstanding. The minimum lease
payments are made up of the following amounts:
2018/19
£000
0
0
0
0

Finance lease liabilities (net present value of
minimum lease payments)
Current liability
Non current liability
Finance costs payable in future years
Minimum lease payments

2017/18
£000
45
0
1
46

The minimum lease payments will be payable over the following periods:
Minimum lease payments

Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later
than five years

Finance lease liabilities

2018/19
£000
0

2017/18
£000
46

2018/19
£000
0

2017/18
£000
54

0

0

0

0

0

46

0

54

East Northamptonshire Council assesses the impairment of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may not be recoverable or otherwise as required by accounting standards. Factors that are
considered important, which could trigger an impairment review, are set out in note 3.
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As part of the terms and conditions of employment, the council offers retirement benefits to its
employees. Although the benefits will not actually be paid until employees retire, the council has
a commitment to make the payments. This commitment needs to be disclosed at the time
employees earn their future entitlement.
The council participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme, a defined benefit final salary
scheme, which is administered by Northamptonshire County Council (NCC). This is a “funded”
scheme, which means that both the council and its employees make payments into a fund,
calculated at a level intended to balance the future pension liabilities with the fund’s assets.
The significant changes that have taken place during the year for a typical employer in the Fund
are that:
• the deficit has increased due to a decrease in the discount rate
Outstanding Issues
The McCloud case judgement found that the claimants had been treated less favourably on the
grounds of age in applying reforms to the Public Sector pension schemes.
Whilst the Government intends to appeal this case, a reliable measure of the financial impact on
the Local Government Pension Scheme has been included.
The amounts in the financial statements at 31 March 2019 are based on the last formal valuation
of the Fund which was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The underlying assets and liabilities for
retirement benefits attributable to the authority at 31 March 2019 are as follows:

Service cost
Current service cost
Past service cost (including curtailments)
Total service cost
Financing and investment income and expenditure
Interest income on plan assets
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation
Total net interest
Total defined benefit cost recognised in the surplus
or deficit on the provision of services

34

2018/19
£000

2017/18
£000

(1,958)
(277)
(2,235)

(1,965)
0
(1,965)

1,119
(1,748)
(629)

1,048
(1,656)
(608)

(2,864)

(2,573)
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Remeasurements recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Return on assets excluding amounts included in net interest

1,954

(201)

Actuarial losses arising on changes in financial assumptions

(5,458)

1,241

(23)

48

Total remeasurements recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income

(3,527)

1,088

Total defined benefit cost recognised in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

(6,391)

(1,485)

(2,864)

(2,573)

2018/19
£000
44,733
(71,428)
(1,015)
(27,710)

2017/18
£000
41,287
(63,342)
(1,000)
(23,055)

Other experience

Movement in Reserves
Employer's contribution payable to the scheme
Assets and Liabilities recognised in the Balance Sheet

Fair value of employer assets
Present value of funded liabilities
Present value of unfunded liabilities
Closing position as at 31 March

Reconciliation of the movements in the fair value of scheme assets

Opening fair value of scheme assets
Interest income on plan assets
Remeasurement gain
Return on assets excluding amounts included in net
interest
Contributions made by the employer into the scheme
Contributions made by the employees into the scheme
Benefits paid
Closing fair value of scheme assets

2018/19
£000
41,287
1,119

2017/18
£000
40,221
1,048

1,954

(201)

1,736
336
(1,699)
44,733

1,712
323
(1,816)
41,287

2018/19
£000
64,342
1,958
1,748
336

2017/18
£000
63,503
1,965
1,656
323

5,458

(1,241)

23
277
(1,699)
72,443

(48)
0
(1,816)
64,342

Reconciliation of present value of the scheme liabilities

Opening present value of scheme liabilities
Current service cost
Interest cost
Contributions made by the employees into the scheme
Remeasurement gain
Actuarial losses arising on changes in financial
assumptions
Other experience
Past service cost
Benefits paid
Closing present value of scheme liabilities
34 Defined benefit pension scheme (continued)
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Fair value of pension scheme assets at bid value
Period Ended 31 March 2019

Asset category

Quoted
prices in
active
markets

Quoted
prices
not in
active
markets

Total

Percentage of
Total
Assets

£000

£000

£000

%

Period Ended 31 March 2018

Quoted
Quoted
prices in prices not
active
in active
markets
markets

£000

£000

Total

Percentage of
Total
Assets

£000

%

Equity Securities:
Consumer

4,907

0

4,907

11%

2,950

0

2,950

7%

Manufacturing

1,721

0

1,721

4%

139

0

139

0%

Energy and Utilities

2,552

0

2,552

6%

2,342

0

2,342

6%

Financial Institutions

2,784

0

2,784

6%

2,860

0

2,860

7%

Health and Care

1,754

0

1,754

4%

1,163

0

1,163

3%

Information
Technology

2,402

0

2,402

5%

2,921

0

2,921

7%

0

0

0

0%

2,638

0

2,638

6%

Corporate Bonds
(investment grade)

0

0

0

0%

0

0

0

0%

Corporate Bonds (noninvestment grade)

0

0

0

0%

0

0

0

0%

UK Government

0

3,828

3,828

9%

3,460

0

3,460

8%

Other

0

0

0

0%

0

0

0

0%

0

807

807

2%

0

222

222

1%

3,537

0

3,537

8%

3,123

0

3,123

8%

112

0

112

0%

148

0

148

0%

15,833

0

15,833

35%

15,182

0

15,182

37%

Other
Debt Securities:

Private Equity:
All
Real Estate:
UK Property
Overseas Property
Investment Funds and
Unit Trusts:
Equities
Bonds

3,247

0

3,247

7%

3,035

0

3,035

7%

Hedge Funds

0

0

0

0%

0

0

0

0%

Commodities

0

0

0

0%

0

0

0

0%

Infrastructure

199

0

199

0%

0

0

0

0%

0

0

0

0%

0

0

0

0%

0

0%

0

0%

Other
Derivatives:
Inflation

0

0

0

0%

0

0

0

0%

Interest Rate

0

0

0

0%

0

0

0

0%

Foreign Exchange

0

0

0

0%

0

0

0

0%

Other

0

0

0

0%

0

0

0

0%

Cash and Cash
Equivalents:
All

1,050

0

1,050

2%

1,105

0

1,105

3%

Totals

40,098

4,635

44,733

100%

41,065

222

41,287

100%
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Actuarial Assumptions
Liabilities have been assessed on the actuarial basis using the project unit method, an estimate of
the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates,
salary levels, etc. The scheme liabilities have been assessed by Hymans Robertson LLP, an
independent firm of actuaries, estimates being based on the latest full valuation of the scheme as
at 31 March 2016.
The actuarial assumptions used in the calculations are detailed in the tables below:
2018/19
% p.a.
2.50
2.80
2.40

Financial Assumptions
Inflation / pension increase rate
Salary increase rate
Discount rate
Mortality
(The average future life
expectancies at age
65)
Current pensioners
Future pensioners

2018/19
Years
Males
22.1
23.9

2017/18
% p.a.
2.40
2.70
2.70

2017/18
Years

Females
24.2
26.1

Males
22.1
23.9

Females
24.2
26.1

Sensitivity Analysis
The sensitivities regarding the principle assumptions used to measure the scheme liabilities are
set out below:

Change in assumptions at 31 March
2018
0.5% decrease in real discount rate
0.5% increase in the salary increase
rate
0.5% increase in the pension increase
rate

Approximate increase
to Employer liability

Approximate monetary
amount

%
10%

£000
7,568

1%

1,041

9%

6,405

Impact on the Authority's Cash Flows
The objectives of the scheme are to keep employers' contributions as a constant rate as possible.
The council has agreed a strategy with the scheme's actuary to achieve a funding level of 100%
over the next 20 years. Funding levels are monitored on an annual basis. The next triennial
valuation is due to be completed 31st March 2020.
The scheme will need to take account of the national changes to the scheme under the Public
Pensions Services Act 2013. Under the Act, Local Government Pension Scheme in England and
Wales and other main service schemes may not provide benefits in relation to the service after
31st March 2014 (or service after 31st March 2015 or other main existing public service pension
schemes in England and Wales). The Act provides for scheme regulations to be made within a
common framework, to establish new career average revalued earnings schemes to pay pensions
and other benefits.
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It is estimated that the council's contribution for the period to 31st March 2020 will be
approximately £1.681m.
The information included for all of the pension disclosure is provided by Hyman Robertson LLP,
the Actuary for the Pension Fund. Further information can be found in The Annual Report of the
Northamptonshire County Council Pension Fund and is available on request from the Pensions
Manager, LGSS Pensions Service, Northamptonshire County Council, One Angel Square, Angel
Street, Northampton NN1 1 ED (Telephone: 01604 366537).
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Prior Period Adjustment

In the finance statements in 2017/18 an accrual was overstated for s.31 grant relating to Non
Domestice Rates, by £929k. This has been corrected in the statements for 2018/19, restating the
2017/18 comparison firgures as follows:

Prior Period Adjustment

Dr
£000

CIES - Taxation and non specific grant
income

929

Balance Sheet - Debtors
Balance Sheet - Ear Marked Reserves

Cr
£000

929
929

MIRS - Surplus/Deficit

929

MIRS - Ear Marked Reserves

929

Cash Flow Statement - Net (surplus) or
deficit on the provision of services

929

Cash Flow Statement - Adjustments to
net surplus or deficit on the provision of
services for non-cash movements

929

The following notes have been restated accordling:
Note 6 - Expenditure and Funding Anaylsis
Note 8 - Movemnet on Reserves
Note 17 - Financial Instruments
Note 18 - Debtors
Note 23 - Cash Flow
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The Collection Fund is an agent's statement that reflects the statutory obligation for billing
authorities to maintain a separate Collection Fund. The statement shows the transactions of
the billing authority in relation to the collection from taxpayers and distribution to local
authorities and the government of council tax and non-domestic rates.

£000
(50,514)

£000
(50,514) Council Tax Receivable
(30,418) (30,418) Business Rates Receivable
(50,514) (30,418) (80,932) Total amounts to be credited
Expenditure
Apportionment of Previous Years
Surplus/Deficit
(27)
(27) Central Government
133
(22)
111 East Northamptonshire
687
(5)
682 County Council
127
127 Police Authority
Precepts, demands and shares
12,883 12,883 Central Government
7,114 10,307 17,421 East Northamptonshire
36,014
2,577 38,590 County Council
6,453
6,453 Police Authority
Charges to the Collection Fund
Increase/(decrease) in allowance for
211
370
581
impairment

Total

Business
Rates

Note

£000

Council Tax

2018/19

Total

Business
Rates

Council Tax

2017/18

£000
(54,410)

£000

0
85
438
79

1,213
971
243
0

1,213
1,056
681
79

0
7,759
38,757
6,929

16,125
12,900
3,225
0

16,125
20,659
41,982
6,929

3

(51)

(221)

(272)

3

0

(409)

(409)

0

264

264

0

101

101

1
2

£000
(54,410)
(32,992) (32,992)
(54,410) (32,992) (87,402)

748

748

Increase/(decrease) in allowance for
appeals

721

721

Transitional Protection Payments
Payable

100

100

454

454 Renewable Energy

0

446

446

50,739

28,105

78,844 Total Expenditure

53,996

34,857

88,853

225

(2,313)

(Surplus)/Deficit arising during the
(2,088)
year

(414)

1,865

1,451

(962)

289
(2,023)

(673) (Surplus)/Deficit b/f at 1 April 2018
(2,760) (Surplus)/Deficit c/f at 31 March 2019

(737)

(1,152)

(2,023)
(158)

(2,760)
(1,310)

(1,011)
(809)
(202)

(1,011)
(913)
(739)
(96)

0
(167)
(835)
(149)

(79)
(63)
(16)
0

(79)
(231)
(851)
(149)

(2,023)

(2,760) Total Allocated

(1,152)

(158)

(1,310)

(737)

Charge to General Fund for allowable
collection costs for non-domestic rates
Other transfer to the General Fund in
accordance with non-domestic rates
regulations

Allocated to:
(104)
(537)
(96)

(737)

Central Government
East Northamptonshire
County Council
Police Authority
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Council tax

Domestic properties within the district are banded from A to H according to their value as at 31
March 1992. The numbers of properties in each banding are then converted into Band D
equivalents using a multiplier and totalled to give a tax base. The Band D equivalents for 2018/19
are detailed below:

Tax Band

Band D
Multiplier

Disabled
A
B
C
D
E
F
G
H

5/9
6/9
7/9
8/9
9/9
11/9
13/9
15/9
18/9
Total

2

Number of Domestic
Properties
2018/19
15
6,818
9,004
5,955
5,040
3,684
2,329
1,363
125
34,334

Band D
Equivalent
2018/19
8
4,546
7,003
5,293
5,040
4,503
3,364
2,272
250
32,280

Band D
Equivalent
2017/18
8
4,452
6,864
5,224
4,965
4,410
3,335
2,250
252
31,760

Income from business (non-domestic) rates

The council collects non-domestic rates for its area, which are based on local rateable values
multiplied by a national uniform rate set by the government, for industrial and commercial
premises. Previously, the total amount due, less certain allowances, was paid to a central pool
(NNDR Pool) managed by central government, which, in turn, paid to local authorities their share of
the pool. This allocation was based on a standard amount per head of the local adult population.
In 2013/14, the distribution of NNDR changed following the introduction of a business rates
retention scheme which aims to give councils a greater incentive to grow businesses but also
increased the financial risk due to volatility and non-collection of rates. The council is working with
other councils across Northamptonshire to continue the pooling arrangements across the county.
Instead of paying NNDR to the central pool, local authorities retain a proportion of the total
collectable rates due. The share due to East Northamptonshire Council is 40%, with the remainder
being distributed to central government (50%) and Northamptonshire County Council (10%).
The total Non-Domestic Rateable Value at 31 March 2019 was £80.7m. The equivalent figure for
31st March 2018 was £77.9m.
The National Non-Domestic rate multiplier for 2018/19 was 49.3p. The equivalent figure for
2017/18 was 47.9p. The Small Business Rate Multiplier for 2018/19 was 48.0p. The equivalent
figure for 2017/18 was 46.6p.
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3
Council tax / NNDR bad debt provision
The Collection Fund account provides for bad debts on Council Tax arrears on the basis of prior
years experience and current years collection rates.

Council Tax
Balance at 1 April
Write offs during year for previous years
Net increase/(decrease) in provision
Balance at 31 March

2018/19
£000
701
(175)
(51)
475

2017/18
£000
657
(167)
211
701

The Collection Fund account also provides for bad debts on NNDR arrears.
2018/19
2017/18
£000
£000
Balance at 1 April
442
131
Write offs during year for previous years
(80)
(59)
Net increase/(decrease) in provision
(221)
370
Balance at 31 March
141
442
The Collection Fund account also provides for provision for appeals against the rateable valuation
set by the Valuation Office Agency (VOA) not settled as at 31st March 2019.
NNDR

NNDR Appeals
Balance at 1 April
Write offs during year for previous years
Net increase/(decrease) in provision
Balance at 31 March

2018/19
£000
3,400
(37)
(372)
2,990
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Scope of responsibility

East Northamptonshire Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in
accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly
accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively. East Northamptonshire Council
also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure
continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a
combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.
In discharging this overall responsibility, East Northamptonshire Council is responsible for putting
in place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs and facilitating the effective exercise
of its functions, which includes arrangements for the management of risk.
East Northamptonshire Council has approved and adopted a local code of corporate governance,
which is consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government. A copy of the authority’s code is on our website at
http://www.east-northamptonshire.gov.uk or can be obtained from the council's Democratic
Services. This code has gone through a process of review and was last updated in June 2017.
This statement is our Annual Governance Statement and explains how East Northamptonshire
Council has complied with the code and also meets the requirements of Accounts and Audit
(England) Regulations 2015, regulation 6(1b), which requires all relevant bodies to prepare an
annual governance statement.

2

The purpose of the governance framework

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, culture and values by which
the authority is directed and controlled and the activities through which it accounts to, engages
with and leads the community. It enables the authority to monitor the achievement of its strategic
objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate
services and value for money.
The budgetary process continues to challenge the value for money and performance of all
services to deliver a robust and sustainable budget. Councillors work jointly with officers via a
range of committees to scrutinise the process and help shape the financial future of the council.
The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage
risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and
objectives, and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of
effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of East Northamptonshire Council’s policies, aims and
objectives, to evaluate the likelihood and potential impact of those risks being realised, and to
manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.
The governance framework has been in place at East Northamptonshire Council for the year
ended 31 March 2019 and up to the date of approval of the statement of accounts

3

The governance framework

Communicating the Authority's vision
East Northamptonshire Council communicates its vision and objectives through the Council's
Corporate Plan. The Corporate Plan 2015 - 2019 approved by Council in December 2015 sets out
the council's key priorities and the outcomes it intends to achieve over the four year period. This
document is available on the council's website. The plan has been developed in consultation with
strategic partners and sets out how the council will work with its communities to sustain a thriving
district.
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The following table sets out the outcomes the council is committed to:

The council monitors and assesses its achievement of the outcomes through business planning
and performance management processes which link the Corporate Plan to Service Plans, Team
Plans and individual Performance and Development Reviews.
On a quarterly basis the outcomes of performance and financial management processes are
reported to Finance and Performance Sub-Committee. Previously, this was reported to Scrutiny
Committee, however Full Council in May 2018 decided disband the Scrutiny Committee and
transfer those functions to Finance and Performance Sub-Committee. Internal audit and other
governance process outcomes are reported to Governance and Audit Committee.

Reviewing and translating the vision
The latest Corporate Plan was approved by Council in December 2015 and covers the period
2015 to 2019. The Corporate Management Team attended an Away Day in April 2018 to review
the Corporate Plan priorities and delivery progress.
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The council uses various media to communicate with its stakeholders, such as:












Council Website
Local Media
Corporate Leaflets
Consultation
Reports & public documents
Displays, exhibitions & road shows
“In House” newsletter for employees
Social Media (Twitter, Facebook)
EnCircle (quarterly council newsletter)
E-newsletter
Enterprising East Northants literature including the Business Charter (supporting local
businesses)
 Local business networks,events and one to one meetings
 Meetings with Town and Parish Councils
The council holds an annual East Northamptonshire Youth Conference, which allows the
council to communicate and deal with issues raised by young people. It allows for issues to be
debated and discussed. The theme for the 2018 event was Business.
Quality of Service
The Corporate Plan sets out how the council plans to achieve its priorities and outcomes. The
Medium Term Financial Strategy demonstrates how it is providing value for money and making the
best use of resources.
Residents of East Northamptonshire who have volunteered as participants in the
Northamptonshire Residents Panel (a joint venture between Northamptonshire County Council,
Northampton Borough Council and East Northamptonshire Council) take part in a consultation
process to give feedback on the council’s services. East Northamptonshire residents from the
Panel were surveyed and consulted during 2018/19 on their perceptions of district-level issues
within the area. The survey was also open to other residents via the council’s website to ensure an
open and accessible forum for residents to share their views. The survey was advertised in local
publications (Nene Valley News and ENCircle) and publicised on Social Media. Paper versions of
the survey were also available to those with no access to the online version of the survey. This
work is extremely useful and helps inform the future direction and priorities of the council.
Roles and responsibilities
The constitution sets out the roles and responsibilities of each committee and includes an
extensive scheme of delegation that is reviewed regularly. All Councillors meet together at Full
Council meetings which are normally open to the public. There were 8 meetings held in this
financial year.
The constitution clearly defines the roles and responsibilities of the statutory officers (Chief
Executive, S151 Officer and Monitoring Officer), Councillors and council officers and the codes
and protocols under which they must operate.
The council’s scheme of delegation identifies those who have powers to make decisions on behalf
of the council. The scheme has been reviewed to take account of constitutional changes and
changes to the management structure.
The Chief Executive is designated as the Head of Paid Service. The constitution documents the
roles and responsibilities of this role and is supplemented by an up to date job description.
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The Executive Director (Resources and Commercial)/(S151 Officer) has a statutory responsibility
to ensure that the council’s financial affairs are properly undertaken and that the council is suitably
safeguarded from loss. The authority’s financial management arrangements conform to the
governance requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in
Local Government (2010).
Reports to committees are scrutinised by the three Statutory Officers (or their deputies where
appropriate) before being presented.
Internal Audit is responsible for independently and objectively reviewing the council’s internal
systems of control with a view to reporting on and making recommendations to improve the
effectiveness of managing risk.
LGSS Internal Audit delivers this role to the council and makes a positive contribution to the
council’s control framework. The authority’s assurance arrangements conform to the governance
requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit (2010) and the
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).
The Governance and Audit Committee is considered to be “those charged with governance” and
receives reports from both the External Auditor and Internal Audit.
Standards of behaviour
The constitution is available to all staff through the intranet and to the public on the council’s
website. It contains clear Codes of Conduct for both Councillors and Officers and a protocol for
Councillor/Officer relations as well as supplementary guidance in relation to the Councillor's role in
regulatory processes such as Planning and Licencing. The Code of Conduct was amended in
2017/18 to reflect the changing context in which Councillors operate, particularly in relation to
social media whilst the Planning and Licensing Protocols have been reviewed in 2017 and 2018
respectively.
The Knowledge, Skills and Behaviours (KSB) framework outlines the council’s expectations of
officers. This is a core framework introduced to all staff at induction and embedded within the
appraisal process for continual development and improvement. This framework was refreshed and
implemented during 2015/16.
The Performance and Development Review (PDR) process is in place to support employees
across the organisation. Through this, along with regular line management meetings and team
meetings, employees are updated and reminded about the standards of behaviour expected by
the council, receive performance appraisals and discuss training needs.
Decision making
The council has a committee system structure in place and therefore does not have an executive.
The council’s constitution clearly shows how decisions of the council have to be made. Agendas,
reports and minutes are available on the council’s website for public inspection in accordance with
the relevant legislative requirements.
The Councillor Induction Programme was undertaken after the May 2015 elections and additional
training has been delivered since. Training in 2018/19 included GDPR, Cyber Security and
Licensing. Individual training is also organised when councillors join specific committees such as
Licensing, Planning Management and Joint Standards Complaints Committee.

East Northamptonshire Council Statement of Accounts 2018/19

78

Annual Governance Statement

2018/19

Where complex decisions are required, e.g. discussions on future local government
reorganisation, procurement of the waste contract or issues relating to housing policies,
Councillor-led working parties have been set up or seminars have been held to facilitate
understanding by Councillors.
The council uses a standard committee report template that contains sections which identify
clearly sections which cover implications around risk management, financial, legal, equalities,
constitutional and customer service impacts. This allows the council to demonstrate that it is
meeting all relevant legislation and guidance and provides consistency for Councillors when
providing challenge and scrutiny. This will be updated in 2018/19 to include privacy impact
implications in recognition of changes in legislation around General Data Protection Duties.
The council has a web page with links to reports of officer decisions made under the Scheme of
Delegation which was implemented following the 'Openness of Local Government Bodies
Regulations 2014'.Where officer decisions are made under the Scheme of Delegation, for
Committees, these are reported next to the minutes for that Committee.
Counter Fraud & Risk Management
The council has a risk management framework, including a system to record risks, controls and
assurance, which forms a comprehensive risk register. Risks are formally reviewed on a quarterly
basis through the performance clinics within the performance management framework. The risk
management process is overseen by the Finance Manager, who ensures the content and
categorisation of risks is regularly reviewed. An annual risk review meeting is carried out by each
service area as well as Corporate Management Team and is continually monitored to identify
new/increased risks and to set out management strategies.
As part of the risk review, work is currently underway revisiting all of the fire risks within each of
the council’s assets. This will continue into 2019/20.
The council acquired a property with a commercial investment approach in 2017/18 which is a
new area of risk to the council. Consequently, a more detailed level of due diligence was carried
out to ensure that risk was effectively mitigated or minimised.
During 2018/19 the council has embarked on developing an Enterprise Centre. In December 2018
a parcel of land was purchased for this project, and building work is expected to start on the site in
June 2019. This represents another new area of risk for the council, being its largest capital build
project in its existence, and the potential that the council may borrow for the first time to fund this
project. Again, additional due diligence has been completed, alongside the procurement of
specialist external consultants with significant experience of building enterprise centres to support
ENC officers with the project.
In October 2016 Council approved the ICT Strategy which aimed to:
•
•
•
•
•

Make our ICT infrastructure simpler, more reliable and secure
Focus resources on business improvement
Integrate ICT with other service areas
Simplify management processes and decision-making within the ICT Service
Adopt common processes and improve efficiency in shared service arrangements with
Borough Council of Wellingborough
• Save money
The strategy involves migrating most of the existing ICT infrastructure, such as servers, to an
external data centre as well as some existing software systems to external providers. This work
started in 2017/18, continued through 2018/19 and will extend into 2019/20. This in itself has
created some risk and disruption to business continuity which is being closely monitored and
reported to CMT. Once the implementation is complete, the need for on-site maintenance and
management of the ICT infrastructure and systems (with associated risks) will reduce or, in some
cases, disappear altogether.
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As part of the continuous improvement of its performance management process, information
about significant risks and key projects is included in the quarterly performance clinics for
discussion with Heads of Service and CMT. Risk is also a regular agenda item for working parties.
A risk management report is presented to Governance and Audit Committee on a quarterly basis.
The council adopted a new Corporate Counter Fraud Strategy in 2015. It is based on a series of
comprehensive and inter-related procedures designed to deter, frustrate, or take effective action
against any attempted fraudulent or corrupt acts affecting the council.
The Corporate Framework for counter fraud requires a whole range of high level component
parts, if it is to contribute to the council having an effective counter-fraud strategy, and some of
the key elements are: Having a Counter Fraud Strategy in place which outlines the council's aims, expectations and
procedures
 Councillor support and codes of conduct for Councillors and Officers
 Confidential Reporting code i.e. “Whistleblowing” policy
 Complaints Procedures
 Procedural Rules for staffing (including recruitment and disciplinary), financial and
procurement matters
 Sound internal control systems, procedures and reliable records
 Effective internal audit arrangements
 Professional Fraud Investigators
 Commitment to ensure compliance with external standards
 Induction and training, clear responsibilities, accountabilities and standards
 Counter Fraud baseline/benchmarking.
A review of the Whistle-blowing Policy was carried out by Internal Audit during 2015/16. The
Auditor's opinion was that of substantial assurance but also provided some areas of
recommendation for improvement. The policy has since been updated to reflect legislative
changes from the Enterprise and Regulatory Reform Act 2013 and other amendments deemed
necessary.
The council monitors feedback and complaints from the public, including those made to the Local
Government Ombudsman. There are procedures in place for consideration of complaints where
Councillors may have breached their Code of Conduct.
Other arrangements
The council recognises the importance of transparency in its activities in promoting public
confidence in the organisation and in facilitating public scrutiny. The council has complied with
changes in guidance that have increased the level of information about its activities which is
made available on the website, including items of spending over £500. Please see the council's
website at http://www.east-northamptonshire.gov.uk/transparency for more information.

4

Review of effectiveness

East Northamptonshire Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the
effectiveness of its governance framework including the system of internal control. This review is
informed by the work of the executive managers within the authority who have responsibility for
the development and maintenance of the governance environment, the Head of Internal Audit’s
annual report, and also by comments made by the external auditors and other review agencies
and inspectorates, together with consideration by the Governance and Audit Committee.
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The main processes that have been relied upon by the council in reviewing and maintaining the
effectiveness of the system of internal control are identified in this section of the Annual
Governance Statement.
The Council’s Corporate Management Team (CMT)
CMT consists of the Chief Executive, the Executive Director (Monitoring Officer), the Executive
Director (Resources and Commercial) and Heads of Service. They meet weekly and provide a
forum for overall planning, performance monitoring and decision making in connection with council
services. CMT provides a management core to enable direction and control.
All significant business proposals are brought to CMT for consideration and approval, and service
plans are scrutinised individually to ensure they contribute to the delivery of the corporate
outcomes. A formal project approval process exists where all significant projects are recorded and
progress is regularly reported.
The Annual Governance Statement and, in particular, any recommendations arising through its
preparation and review, are reviewed by CMT, therefore assisting with the continued improvement
in the council’s internal control, risk management and governance arrangements.
CMT is assigned responsibility for the planning and delivery of specific services in accordance
with the council’s business priorities. In doing so they have a responsibility to ensure that services
provide good value for money and council resources are safeguarded from loss and damage.
The council’s Constitution places much of the responsibility for internal control on its Chief
Executive, and the two Executive Directors who act as Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance
Officer, though in practice this is largely delegated to the Heads of Service. Therefore, annually
the Heads of Service are required to certify a ‘Senior Management Assurance Statement’. This
statement requires explicit confirmation that, as the senior managers within the council
responsible for the delivery of services, they have done so in accordance with the council’s
policies, procedures and practices which underpin the internal control framework. Where
exceptions exist, there is a requirement to disclose these so that consideration can be given to the
overall impact they may have on the effectiveness of the council’s internal control environment
and the preparation of the Annual Governance Statement. Heads of Service are also required to
review and identify any emerging risks that may threaten service delivery. These are reflected on
the risk register or audit plan. Significant issues are incorporated into an action plan.
The Scrutiny Committee
The Scrutiny Committee was disbanded at Annual Council in May 2018 as part of the process of
streamlining the council’s activities in preparation for the anticipated transition to a North
Northamptonshire Unitary Council This decision also recognised that the majority of future policy
and service development activity would take place on a North Northamptonshire basis.
Any service development activity prior to the start of the new unitary council would be undertaken
on a cross council basis, building on existing shared service arrangements, and monitored by the
new Transformation Committee. This Committee also monitors any internal transformation work
this council carries out.
Monitoring of Performance Reports was transferred to renamed Finance and Performance Sub
Committee whilst provision was made for the completion of any outstanding Scrutiny projects.
Where appropriate any recommendations arising from these reviews would be reported to Policy
and Resources Committee.
There remains provision within the Constitution for Councillors to raise issues relating to the remit
of any Committee or the Council via questions or motions under Part 4.1 (Procedure Rules) of the
Constitution and for appropriate responses/action to be agreed at the relevant meeting.
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Governance and Audit Committee
The Governance and Audit Committee's terms of reference include the agreement of the final
accounts together with consideration of Internal and External Audit Reports. The other keys areas
which are considered by the Committee include risk management and internal control, ethics and
probity plus consideration of changes to the Constitution.

Councillors received training during 2018/19 on the Effectiveness and Responsibilities of an Audit
Committee.
An Annual Report of the Governance and Audit Committee was published in June 2018 which
summarised the work undertaken by the Committee during 2017/18 and reviewed its
effectiveness. An Annual Report for 2018/19 is due to be published in June 2019.
East Northamptonshire Joint Standards Committee
The council established the East Northamptonshire Joint Standards Complaints Committee in
2012 as part of its arrangements to meet the requirements of the Localism Act 2011. The
Committee has seven East Northamptonshire Councillors and seven Town and
Parish Councillors, who together advise on complaints against councillors in respect of the
Councillor Code of Conduct. The Committee can also grant dispensation to councillors to take
part in council business in certain circumstances where the Code of Conduct would otherwise
prevent this.
The Board meets 3 times a year to formally review the effectiveness of the complaints procedure
and Councillor Code of Conduct. Panels are drawn from the Committee to hear complaints
and appeals when necessary.
The council also appoint an Independent Person (and Reserve) to advise the Monitoring
Officer and Committee at various points in the assessment of complaints.
The key roles and functions of the Committee are to promote and maintain high standards of
conduct of Councillors, ensuring they observe the Councillor Code of Conduct, to provide training
on the application of the Code and to deal with any reports from the Monitoring Officer. The Board
has responsibilities for the corporate governance of the 41 Town and Parish Councils in the
District and for providing advice and training to their Councillors. The Committee proposed
two significant changes to the Procedure for the Assessment of Complaints (Part 9 of the
Constitution) in 2019.
The council has facilitated the publication of councillors’ registers of interest on its website for
ENC and all town and parish councils, together with a list of Codes of Conduct that have been
adopted.
Internal Audit
Internal Audit is responsible for independently and objectively reviewing the council’s systems
of internal control with a view to providing assurance on their effectiveness in managing the risks
to achievement of key council aims and objectives. Internal Audit reports on and
makes recommendations to council management with regard to their effectiveness in managing
business risk. Internal Audit reviews are completed in accordance with the approved annual
internal audit plan. This is a programme of reviews designed to assess the effectiveness of the
internal controls on which the council relies for managing key risks. The programme is created
after consideration of the controls in place and risks facing the council, with input from CMT and
councillors. Changes to the agreed programme have to be approved by the Governance and
Audit Committee.
The Annual Internal Audit Report for 2018/19 states that the Head of Internal Audit’s opinion is
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that "Satisfactory Assurance can be given over the adequacy and effectiveness of the council's
control environment" based on the work completed during the year with one exception relating to
IT security “where only an opinion of Limited Assurance could be given” at the time of audit. This
wider control environment comprises of the system of internal control, governance arrangements
and risk management and generally remains at a consistent level from 2017/18. It represents the
middle of the five levels of assurance within the model adopted by LGSS.
The outcome of audits of the council’s key financial systems have been strong with the majority of
assurance opinions being of Substantial Assurance, the highest rating given, for design of controls
and compliance with these.
The implementation rate by officers for actions arising from audit reports has improved
significantly from 2017/18, with 100% of actions due from the audits in 2018/19 being completed
during the year.
A detailed self-assessment against the PSIAS is carried out annually by the Head of Internal
Audit. The outcome of the assessment for 2018/19 was that the activities of the Internal Audit
service are in general conformance with the Standards.
In 2018/19, LGSS have delivered 100% of the agreed assignments within the audit plan.
External Audit
External Audit is responsible for providing an opinion on the council’s financial statements. For the
year ended 31 March 2018 an unqualified (or satisfactory) opinion was issued in August 2018 and
presented to the Governance and Audit Committee for approval.
The Annual Governance Report was presented to the Governance and Audit Committee in July
2018. This document included reference to the areas of work carried out by KPMG as the
council’s external auditors, including their work on their 'Value for Money' evaluation. KPMG
concluded that in 2017/18, “the Authority has made proper arrangements to ensure it took
properly-informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable
outcomes for taxpayers and local people”.
Section 151 Officer and Monitoring Officer
The council's Section 151 Officer and Monitoring Officer roles are provided by the Executive
Director (Resources and Commercial) and Executive Director (Monitoring Officer) respectively. As
part of their statutory roles, each officer also provides on-going advice in connection with both the
financial and legal standing of council business, and advice to Councillors on their responsibilities.
The Executive Director (Resources and Commercial) and Executive Director (Monitoring Officer)
acknowledge and have demonstrated active management of their responsibilities for the
governance including maintaining their continuous professional development requirements.
Other Mechanisms or Sources of Assurance
A number of other external sources of assurance exist that demonstrate good management and
support the overall good governance of the council such as the Annual report by the Local
Government Ombudsman on the outcome of complaints referred to them is reported to
Governance & Audit Committee.
Financial Management Arrangements
The council continues to deliver its objectives with fewer resources and through new mechanisms
for delivery. The council believes that it is therefore even more important to ensure that strong
governance continues throughout the organisation.
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The council’s MTFS covers a four year period. Such an approach to financial planning provides
the platform by which the council can look to deliver public services in accordance with local
priorities. Moreover, through ‘scanning the horizon’ and anticipating necessary
change at the earliest opportunity, the council can plan and react accordingly, both to secure its
financial position and to protect services.
The MTFS was updated throughout 2018/19. Following the Local Government Settlement and as
part of the budget setting process for 2019/20, an updated MTFS was presented to council on 4
March 2019. Councillors have up-to-date financial information about the current and medium term
outlook, for decision making purposes.
The council has a set of Financial Procedure Rules and Contract Procedure Rules within its
Constitution which govern the way in which financial matters are conducted. The Contract
Procedure Rules were updated during 2014/15 following changes arising from The Public
Contract Regulations (2015), and were reviewed and further strengthened in October 2018.
Additional training needs of all officers involved with procurements are currently being reviewed.
The Financial Procedure Rules underwent considerable review during 2014/15 and were updated
in March 2019.
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The council believes that
the functions and services delivered by the council will continue in operational existence for at
least the financial years 2019/20 and 2020/21. Local Government Reorganisation in
Northamptonshire is discussed below within significant governance issues.

Declaration
We have been advised on the implications of the result of the review of the effectiveness of the
council’s governance framework.
The overall assessment is that the arrangements continue to be regarded as fit for purpose in
accordance with the governance framework. We are satisfied that there are appropriate plans in
place to address any weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement in the system of internal
control.
Significant governance issues
The council has considered the outcomes of the risk management and assurance processes
referred to in this Governance Statement. Where considered appropriate, action plans have been
developed to address weaknesses.
Local Government Reorganisation in Northamptonshire
In August 2018, the council submitted a proposal to MHCLG in regards to Local Government
Reorganisation in Northamptonshire. On 14th May 2019, the Secretary of State for Housing,
Communities and Local Government confirmed that two new unitary authorities will be created,
one for West Northamptonshire and one for North Northamptonshire, of which this council will
become part of. During 2018/19, Councillors, members of CMT and other officers have been
involved in a number discussions, working parties and baselining activities associated with this
reform. This process is governed by separate arrangements spanning all councils affected, that
have been reviewed and approved by the council.
The recently announced confirmation of
reorganisation albeit with a start date of 2021 is likely to increase the risk of turnover in key posts.
Any vacancies will be reviewed within the context of opportunities to change structures or share
service responsibilities to meet the demands of transformation and transition to the new unitary
Council.
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IT Cyber Security
A recent Cyber Security Audit highlighted a number of issues relating to IT security which
have already being dealt with or are in hand. Significant progress has been made since the audit
was undertaken in March 2019. The audit recognized this vast improvement and the quality of
the roadmap to complete the remaining works.
General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR)
The council is fully committed to implementing the requirements of GDPR along with a number of
related work streams, such as paperless working and ICT Strategy implementation. Together
these will overhaul the council’s data management arrangements to make them legally
compliant and supportive of modern working practices. This work is not yet complete, as
highlighted in a recent Internal Audit Report, and the recommended actions. The Council
appointed a qualified Data Protection Officer to assist in this work.

During 2018/19 Internal Audit made a number of recommendations to further improve the internal
control systems in place across the council. It is planned that those recommendations are
implemented during the next financial year.
We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the outstanding matters to further
enhance our governance arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps will address the need for
improvements that were identified in our review of effectiveness and will monitor their
implementation and operation as part of our next annual review.

Signed:

Signed:

Date:

Date:

David Oliver
Chief Executive

Cllr. Steven North
Leader of the council

Leader and Chief Executive on behalf of East Northamptonshire Council.

S
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Accounting Period
This is the length of time covered by the accounts. It is normally a period of twelve months
commencing on 1 April. The end of the accounting period is the balance sheet date.
Accrual
Income or expenditure relating to goods or services received / provided during the accounting
period where payment has not been made or received at the end of the accounting period.
Actuarial Assumptions
Assumptions made by the Pension Fund Actuary in valuing the funds assets and liabilities
Actuarial Gains and Losses
For a defined pension scheme, the changes in actuarial deficits or surpluses arise because:
 events have not coincided with the actuarial assumptions made at the last valuation or:
 the actuarial assumptions have changed.
Actuarial Valuation
An actuary undertakes a valuation by comparing the value of the pension schemes assets with its
liabilities. The actuary then calculates how much needs to be paid into the scheme by the employer
and members to ensure there will be adequate funds to pay the pensions when they become due.
Asset
An asset is something the council owns. Assets can be either current or non current.
 A current asset is one that will be used or cease to have a material value by the end of the next
financial year.
 A non current asset provides a benefit to the council for a period greater than one year.
Balance Sheet
A statement summarising the council’s financial position at the end of the accounting period. The
statement shows the council’s assets and liabilities.
Billing Council
East Northamptonshire Council is classed as a billing council as it has the responsibility of
collecting the council tax and non-domestic rates. It collects the council tax on behalf of the County
Council and Police Authority and the non domestic rates on behalf of central government.
Capital Adjustment Account
This account contains the amount that was required to be set aside from the capital receipts and
the amount of capital expenditure financed from revenue and capital receipts. It also contains the
difference between amounts provided for depreciation and the statutory minimum amount that
must be set aside from revenue for the repayment of external debt, if applicable.
Capital Charges
Capital charges are charged to General Fund service revenue accounts for the use of non current
assets.
Charges for the use of non current assets consist of an annual provision for depreciation, where
appropriate. The calculation of these charges is based on the opening Net Book Value (NBV) of
each of the assets.
Capital Expenditure
Expenditure on the acquisition or enhancement of a non current asset, which adds to and not
merely maintains the value of existing assets.
Capital Financing
Sources of money that have been used to finance the capital programme. The council uses various
methods to finance its capital expenditure, including direct revenue financing, usable capital
receipts, capital grants, revenue reserves and earmarked reserves.
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Capital Financing Requirement
The capital financing requirement indicator is to measure an authority’s underlying need to borrow
to fund capital expenditure.
Capital Grants Unapplied
These are capital grants that the council has received, that have not yet been used to finance
capital expenditure.
Capital Programme
The planned capital schemes the council intends to carry out over a specified period of time.
Capital Receipt
The council can use the proceeds from the disposal of non current assets to finance new capital
investments, the proceeds cannot be used to finance revenue expenditure.
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA)
Professional accountancy body specialising in the public sector.
Code
The CODE is a code of practice that has been developed by the CIPFA/LASAAC Joint Committee
in accordance with the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) code of practice for the development of
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
Collection Fund
A separate fund recording the income and expenditure relating to Council Tax, Business Rates and
the residual Community Charge.
Council Tax
The main source of local taxation to local authorities. Council tax is levied on households within its
area by the billing authority and the proceeds are paid into its Collection Fund for distribution to
precepting authorities and use by its own General Fund.
Corporate / Democratic Core
The corporate and democratic core comprises all activities which local authorities engage in
specifically because they are elected, multi purpose authorities. The cost of these activities are
thus over and above those which would be incurred by a series of independent, single purpose,
nominated bodies managing the same services. There is therefore no logical basis for apportioning
these costs to services.
Contingent Liabilities
A contingent liability is either:
a possible obligation arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the council’s control: or
a present obligation arising from past events where it is not probable that a transfer of economic
benefits will be required or the amount cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.
Creditor
Amounts owed by the council for goods or services they have received for which payment has not
been made.
Current Service Cost (Pensions)
The increase in the present value of a defined benefit schemes liabilities.
DCLG – LSVT Levy
This relates to amounts due to the Office of the Deputy Prime Minister (ODPM) as a result of the
Right to Buy agreement negotiated at the time of the transfer of the housing stock between East
Northamptonshire Council and East Northamptonshire Housing.
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Debtor
Amounts owed to the council for goods or services the council has provided for which payment has
not been received.
Depreciation
This is a charge made to the service revenue accounts each year to reflect the reduction in the
value of the asset used in the delivery of services.
Finance Lease
A lease which transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of a non current
asset to the lessee.
Government Grants
Grants made by the government towards either revenue or capital expenditure to support the cost
of the provision of services. These grants may be specifically towards the cost of particular
schemes or to support the revenue spend of the council.
Gross Book Value
The historical cost or the revalued amount of the asset before depreciation.
Impairment
Where the value of the non current asset reduces below its carrying amount on the balance sheet.
Liability
A liability is where the council owes payment to an individual or an organisation.
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)
The minimum amount which must be charged to a council’s revenue account each year.
Net Book Value
This is the value of an asset that is counted in the balance sheet. It represents its historical or
revalued cost less the accumulated depreciation of the asset.
Net Worth
The total value of an organisation expressed as total assets less total liabilities.
National Non-Domestic Rate (NNDR)
A levy on businesses, based on a national rate in the pound set by the government multiplied by
the rateable value of the premises they occupy. NNDR is collected by billing authorities and
distributed to central government (50%), Northamptonshire County Council (10%) and East
Northamptonshire Council (40%).
Non Operational Asset
Non current assets held by the council but are not directly occupied used or consumed in the
delivery of services.
Operating Lease
A lease where the ownership of the asset remains with the lessor.
Operational Asset
Non current assets held and occupied, used or consumed by the council in the direct delivery of
services.
Precept
The levy made by precepting authorities on billing authorities, requiring the later to collect income
from taxpayers on their behalf.
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Provision
Provisions are for liabilities or losses which are likely or certain to be incurred, but the amounts or
the dates on which they will arise are uncertain.
Prudential Code
The Prudential Code was developed by CIPFA, as a professional code of practice to support local
authorities in making capital decisions. The key objectives of the Prudential Code are to ensure the
capital investment plans of local authorities are affordable, prudent and sustainable. A further key
objective is to ensure that treasury management decisions are taken in accordance with good
professional practice and in a manner that supports prudence, affordability and sustainability.
Rateable Value (RV)
The annual assumed rental value of a property that is used for business purposes.
Related Parties
The council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties – bodies or individuals
that have the potential to control or influence the council or to be controlled or influenced by the
council.
Reserves
Funds set aside for expenditure in future years. Certain reserves have constraints on how they can
be spent.
Revenue Expenditure
Expenditure on the day-to-day costs of providing services.
Revenue Support Grant (RSG)
Grant from central government towards the cost of service provision.
Section 106
These are receipts received by the council from developers for a specific purpose; they arise as a
result of a planning agreement between the council and developer.
Stocks
Items bought for consumption or resale, or raw materials, currently being held.
Tangible Non Current Assets
Tangible assets that yield benefits to the local authority and the services it provides for a period of
more than one year.
Useful Life
The period over which the local authority and the services it provides for a period of more than one
year.
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